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Shri R.K. Vishnai, CMD, THDCIL, and Dr. Sandeep Singhal, MD, UIVNL, signing the Mol between
THDCIL and UJVNL on 06.03.2023
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A UTTARAKH AND

UTTARAKHAND
ENERGY CONCLAVE
2023

Hon'ble CM Shri Pushkar Singh Dhami and Shii Bhupender Gupta, Nominee Director THDCIL at the
Uttarakhand Energy Conclave-2023 on 05.12.2023



.. INDEX

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Board of Directors
Corporate Information
Chairman’s Speech

Key Financial Information
Directors’ Brief Profile

Notice

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2024-25 AND ANNEXURES

Directors’ Report 2024-25

Form ADC-2

FINANCIALSTATEMENT 2024-25

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit & Loss

Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Changes in equity
Significant Accounting Policy

Motes on Accounts

nd AT fiUrE
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statement

Comments of the C&AG of India & Management explanation

Pg. No.

g-11

12-15

16-32

33

34-35
36-37
38-39
40-41
42-57
58-73
74-84

85-86




2024-25

[ ey
s BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri R.K. Vishnoi
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Shri Bhupender Gupta Shri Sipan Kumar Garg Shri Laxmi Prasad Joshi

Nominee Director Nominee Director Maminee Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. REGISTERED OFFICE
THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited
26 ECRoad, Dehradun, Uttarakhand- 248001
Phone No.: 9012480808
Email ID: tuecolimited@thdc.co.in

2. CHIEFEXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)
Shri Sandeep Kumar
Contact No.: 9012480808

Email: sandeepkumar@thdc.co.in

3. CHIEFFINANCIALOFFICER(CFO)
Shri 5.K. Mohanty
ContactMNo.: 9412961818

Email: smohanty@thdc.co.in

4. COMPANY SECRETARY (CS)
Ms. Shakshi Negi
Contact No.: 8650927633
Email: shakshinegi@thdc.co.in

5. STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s Ansul Agrawal & Company

Chartered Accountants,

19B, Mgchit Vihar, Behind Carmel School,
G.M.5. Road, Dehradun-248006
Contact No.:9810153504

Email ID: ansulagrawal@gmail.com

6. BANKERS
Punjab National Bank
EC Road, Dehradun
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CHAIRMAN'’S SPEECH

Shri R.K. Vishnoi

Chairman & Nominee Directaor

Dear Shareholders,

It is with a deep sense of responsibility and
optimism that | present to you the second
Annual Report of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy
Company Limited for the financial year ending
31st March 2025. Qur journey, though still at
an early stage, continues to be defined by
commitment, perseverance, and the collec-
tive pursuit of building a strong foundation for
the future of clean energy.

CAPITALSTRUCTURE & DIVIDEND

As on 31st March 2025, the Authorized Share
Capital of your Company stood at 50 crore,
divided into 5 crore equity shares of 10 each,
while the subscribed and paid-up capital
remained at Y10 crore. The equity holding
continues in the ratio of 74% and 26%
between THDC India Limited and UJVN Limited
respectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company
remained in the survey and investigation
phase across its portfolio of projects.

Conseqguently, no revenue was recorded, and
the Company incurred a loss of ¥19.57 lakh.
While financial results are modest at this
stage, they reflect the long gestation nature of
hydro and pumped storage projects, which
demand extensive studies, clearances, and
groundwork before progressing to the con-
struction stage. The Statutory Auditor of the
Company has given an unqualified report on
the financial statements for FY 2024-25, and
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India has
opted not to conduct a supplementary audit
under Section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013.

OPERATIONALPERFORMANCE
The Government of Uttarakhand entrusted
our Company with the responsibility of devel-

oping three hydroelectric projects and two
pumped storage plants.

® Mori Hanol Hydro Electric Project
(63 MW):
In compliance with environmental
regulations and after detailed surveys,
the originally allotted Mori-Hanol HEP (63
MW) was found to be economically
unviable in its standalone form. After
consultations with the Government of
Uttarakhand, it was agreed to integrate
Mori-Hanol with the downstream
Hanol-Tuini HEP into a single Mori-Tuini
Hydro Electric Project (102 MW). The
feasibility report has been prepared and
submitted, and we are optimistic about
moving forward with this integrated
project, which is now technically and
economicallyviable.

®  Urthing Sobla (280 MW) & Bogudiyar
Sirkari Bhyol (146 MW):
These projects remain on hold due to
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restrictions imposed by the Ministry of Jal
Shakti regarding development in the
Ganga Basin. We have represented to the
authorities that the rivers concerned are
tributaries of the Sharda and do not form
part of the Ganga Basin. We await further
directions and are hopeful for a positive
resolution.

Pumped Storage Plants (PSPs):
e Shivpuri Pump Storage Plant (600 MW):
The Pre-Feasibility Report was com-

pleted. However, the project is presently
on hold due toregulatory restrictions

e Jaspalgarh PSP (630 MW):

The project was found unviable due to its
location in the core zone of Rajaji National
Park. An alternative site, laspalgarh-
Satichaur (off-stream P5P), was identified
but it too falls within the buffer zone of
the Rajaji Tiger Reserve, posing major
regulatory challenges. Consequently,
further progress has been constrained.

Recognizing these limitations, we have
formally requested the Government of
Uttarakhand to allocate alternate hydro
and pumped storage projects where
development can commence without
delay.

LOOKING AHEAD

Our company continues to play a pivotal role in
advancing clean energy vision. Despite the
regulatory and environmental complexities,
we remain committed to identifying viable
projects and ensuring that each step aligns
with sustainability, economic feasibility, and
stakeholdervalue creation.

- wa il Frtd
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to place on record my sincere
gratitude to the Government of Uttarakhand,
the Ministry of Power, and other regulatory
authorities for their continuous support. |
extend heartfelt appreciation to our share-
holders and stakeholders for their confidence
in our vision.

A special word of thanks goes to our employ-
ees, whose dedication and perseverance are
enabling the company to navigate the chal-
lenging early stages of project development. |
also acknowledge the guidance and oversight
of our auditors and the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India.

CONCLUSION

We look ahead with determination and a
strong belief in our mission to harness renew-
able energy resources for the sustainable
growth of Uttarakhand and the nation. While
challenges remain, we are confident that with
the support of our stakeholders and the
dedication of our team, the coming years will
see significant milestones in our journey.

With Best Wishes,

Sd/-
Rajeev Kumar Vishnoi
Chairman & Nominee Director

THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited

Date: 24.09.2025

Place: Dehradun
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I = EINANCIAL INEORMATION
KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

.
Amount in Lakhs
S.No. Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24
A Revenue
1 | Sales 0.00 0.00
2 | OtherlIncome 54.91 0.00
3 | TOTALREVENUE 54.91 0.00
B Expenses
4 | Employees Benefit Expense 82.41 22.26
5 | Generation, Administration & Other expenses 1723 41.88
& | Provisions 0.00 0.00
7 | Extra Ordinary items
8 | TOTALEXPENDITURE 84.18 64.14
9 | GROSS MARGIN(PBDIT) (3-8) (29.27) | (64.14)
10 | Depreciation & Amortisation 0.00 0.00
11 | GROSS PROFIT(PBIT) (9-10}) (29.27) | (64.14)
12 | Finance Cost 0.00 0.00
13 | Profit before Regulatory Deferral Account Balances,
Exceptional items and Tax (11-12) (29.27) | (64.14)
14 | Income Tax 0.00 0.00
15 | Deferred Tax Asset (9.70) (14.59)
16 | Profit/ (Loss) For the Period before net movement
inregulatory deferral account balances (13-14-15) (19.57) | (49.55)
17 | Net Movementin Regulatory Deferral Account
Balancelncome/ Expense
18 | Profit/ (Loss) For the Period from continuing
operations (16-17) (19.57) | (49.55)
19 | Other Comprehensive Income
20 | Income Tax on OCl-Deferred Tax Assets/Liability
21 | TOTALCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME (18-19-20) (19.57) | (49.55)
C Assets
22 | Tangible and Intangible Assets (Net Block) 27.31 7.49
23 | Capital Work In Progress 669.09 180.03
24 | Right of use Assets 0.00 0.00
25 | Longterm Loans and advances
26 | Deferred Tax Assets 24.29 14.59
27 | Non-Current Assets (Net)
28 | Other Non-Current Assets
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29| Current Assets 518.78 1000.25
30| OtherCurrent Assets 5.49 0.00
31| Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balance
32 | Total Assets 1244.96 1202.35
D Liabilities
33| Equity Share Capital 1000.00 1000.00
34 | Other Equity
35| Reserve and Surplus (69.12) (49.55)
36| Other Comprehensive Income
37 | Total Other Equity (35-36) (69.12) (49.55)
38| NetWorth (33+37) 930.88 950.45
39| Long Term Borrowings
40| Non-Current Lease Liabilities
41| OtherLong-Term Liabilities and Provisions
42 | Short Term Borrowings
43| Current Maturity of Long-Term Debt
44 | Current Maturity of Long Lease Liability
45| Other Current Liability 314.08 251.90
46 | Total Liabilities (39 to 45) 1244.96 1202.35
47 | Capital Employed (38 +39 +42 +43-26) 906.59 935.86
48 | Dividend
49 | Value Added (9) (29.27) (64.14)
50| Number Of Employees 9.00 9.00
51| Number of Shares (ParValue ¥10/- pershare) 10000000.00 |10000000.00
E Ratios

52| Earning PerShareincluding net movementin

regulatory deferral account balance

(ParValue T10/- pershare) (0.20) (1.49)
53| CurrentRatio (29 /(42 +43 +44-45)) (1.65) (3.97)
54 | Debt Equity Ratio ((39+42+43) /38) 0.00 0.00
55| Return On capital Employed (PBIT/ Capital

Employed) ((11+7) /47) (0.03) (0.07)
56| Returnonnetworth (0.02) (0.05)
57| Total Comprehensive Income to Revenue from

Operations (21 /1)
58 | Book Value perShare(In¥)-Networth/ Number

of shares (38 /51) 9.31 9.50
59| Value Added per Employee (% Inlac) (49 /50) (3.66) (8.02)
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NET WORTH V/S SIZE OF BALANCE SHEET
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DIRECTORS’ BRIEF PROFILE S

SHRIRAJEEV KUMAR VISHNOI
Chairman & Nominee Director

Shri Rajeev Kumar Vishnoi assumed charge as the Chairman and
Nominee Director of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited (TUECO)
on 1st December 2023. He is also serving as the Chairman and Managing
Director of THDC India Limited (THDCIL) since 6th August 2021, having
earlier held the post of Director (Technical) from 1st September 2019.

An Honours Graduate in Civil Engineering from BITS Pilani, he also holds
an MBA and has completed a specialized programme in Design and
Construction of Hydraulic Structures and Hydropower Projects from the

State University of Moscow, Russia. He has further enhanced his leadership acumen through
the Advanced Management Programme in Leading Strategic Change at ASCI, Hyderabad, in
collaboration with SDA Bocconi School of Management, Italy.

With over 38 years of extensive experience in the design, engineering, and execution of hydro
projects, he has significantly contributed to major projects such as Tehri, Koteshwar, and
Vishnugad-Pipalkoti (444 MW), where he also served as Executive Director. His expertise is
internationally recognized, and he currently represents India on the Technical Committee on
Seismic Safety of Dams under the International Commission on Large Dams (ICOLD). He has
been invited to deliver keynote lectures in several countries such as Spokane(US), Washington
DC (US), St. Petersburg (Russia), Chengdu (China), Beijing (China), Porto Carras (Greece),
Antalya (Turkey), Ottawa (Canada), Singapore and Nepal.

SHRIBHUPENDER GUPTA
Nominee Director, THDCIL

Shri Bhupender Gupta has been appointed as the Nominee Director of
THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited, effective from December 1,
2023. He is presently serving as Director (Technical) at THDC India
Limited since June 9, 2023, and has recently been entrusted with the
additional charge of Chairman and Managing Director, SJVN Limited,
effective May 1, 2025.He has held key leadership positions, including
Director (Technical) at the Punatsangchhu Hydroelectric Project
Authority in Bhutan. Prior to this, he worked as Additional Chief Executive
Officer in two subsidiaries of REC, i.e., REC Transmission Projects Co. Ltd. and REC Power Distribution
Co. Ltd. as Operational Head. During his tenure at REC, he oversaw the execution, project
management, contract management, and consultancy of power sector projects.He has a rich and
vast working experience of around 34 years, out of which for around 31 years he has worked in the
Power Sector and was responsible for Planning, Design, Execution, Contract & Project Management
and O&M of large Hydro Projects as well as Transmission and Distribution Projects.He holds a
Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical and an MBA in Operation Management. Before joining REC Ltd.
in 2007, he worked at SIVN Ltd. for 12 years in various roles, where he was responsible for planning,
erection, and commissioning of electro-mechanical equipment for the 1500 MW Nathpa Jhakri
Hydro Power Plant, the largest hydroelectric project currently operational in India. He also worked in
Bhutan on deputation with the 1020 MW Tala Hydroelectric Power Project for about three years, .
from 2002 to 2005. L >
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SHRISIPAN KUMAR GARG

Nominee Director, THDCIL

Shri Sipan Kumar Garg assumed the position of Nominee Director on the
Board of THDCIL-UWJVNL Energy Company Limited (TUECO) on 6th
September 2024. He also hold the position of Director (Finance) in THDC
India Limited since 17th August 2024.A highly accomplished finance
professional, Shri Garg holds a bachelor's degree in commerce (Hons)
and is a qualified Chartered Accountant (CA), Cost Accountant (CMA),
and Company Secretary (CS). He is also a law graduate (LL.B.) and was a

rank holder in the Company Secretary examination.With over 24 years of rich experience in
Finance, Accounts, Taxation, and Commercial operations within the power sector, Shri Garg
brings deep financial insight and strategic leadership to his role. His prior roles include serving as
Chief Financial Officer at Aravali Power Company Private Limited and Patratu Vidyut Utpadan
Nigam Limited; both group companies of NTPC Limited. At NTPC, he held several key positions,
including pivotal roles in Corporate Accounts and the Koldam Hydro Power Project.Throughout
his career, Shri Garg has demonstrated integrity, dedication, and leadership, earning recognition
for his outstanding contributions. Under his leadership, Aravali Power Company Private Limited
received its highest credit ratings and secured substantial savings on long-term loan interest.An
active contributor to the finance community, Shri Garg has participated in numerous seminars
and workshops in India and abroad. He is a respected speaker on Accounting Standards and Ind
AS and has served on several committees of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
including the Committee on Public Finance and Government Accounting, Accounting Standards
Study Group, and the Members in Industry Group (PSU).

SHRILAXMI PRASAD JOSHI

Nominee Director, THDCIL

Shri Laxmi Prasad Joshi, assumed the position of Nominee Director on
the board of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited w.e.f. 1 December
2023 and currently serves as Executive Director (Tehri Hydro Power
Complex) at THDC India Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering
(Hons.) from MMM Engineering College, Gorakhpur, and a Master of
Technology in Water Resources Development and Management from T

Roorkee.With extensive experience in the design and engineering of electro-mechanical
systems, Shri Joshi has played a pivotal role in several ongoing and upcoming hydroelectric
projects of THDCIL. His notable contributions include key assignments in the Tehri Hydroelectric
Power Project Stage-l (4x250 MW) and Koteshwar HEP (4x100 MW). Under his leadership,
THDCIL successfully commissioned the first two units (250 MW each) of India’s first Variable
Speed Pumped Storage Plant at Tehri, Uttarakhand.Presently, he is overseeing the EPC contract
for the 1000 MW Tehri Pumped Storage Project (PSP). He has also been responsible for due
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diligence, resolution plan preparation, participation in NCLT proceedings, and other key
processes related to the proposed transfer of the 1750 MW Demwe Lower and 1200 MW Kalai-I|
hydroelectric projects in Arunachal Pradesh.Shri Joshi also heads operations at both Tehri HPP
(4%250 MW) and Koteshwar HEP (4x100 MW). He has been instrumental in the formulation and
approval of Quality Assurance Plans, pre-dispatch inspections, and the restoration of electro-
mechanical equipment damaged during flooding at Koteshwar. His leadership has significantly
enhanced the Operations and Maintenance functions across both projects, where he has held
various senior positions.An accomplished professional and subject matter expert, ShriJoshi has
authored and presented several research papers at national and international forums. He has
undergone advanced training in computerized control systems in Germany and governing
systems in France. He is a Life Member of the Indian Society for Technical Education and an
Associate Member of the Institution of Engineers (India).

Dr. SANDEEPSINGHAL
Nominee Director, UJIVN Limited

Dr. Sandeep Singhal was appointed as the Nominee Director of UJVN
Limited on the Board of THDCIL UJVNL Energy Company Limited with
effect from December 1, 2023. He currently serves as Managing Director
on the Board of UJVN Limited.He holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering and an MBA in Finance, and has earned his Ph.D. in Power
Management from the University of Petroleum and Energy Studies,
Dehradun.With over 36 years of experience in the power sector, including
35 years dedicated to the development of hydropower projects from concept to commissioning
in India and Bhutan. His extensive career includes approximately 23 years of service in NHPC and
12 yearsin UJVN Ltd.

SHRISURESH CHANDRA BALUNI
Nominee Director, UIVN Limited

Shri Suresh Chandra Baluni has been appointed as the Nominee Director
of UJVN Limited on the Board of THDCIL UJVNL Energy Company Limited,
effective from December 1, 2023. Currently, he serves as the Director
(Project) on the Board of UIVN Limited.5hri Balunihas a rich and extensive
working experience of more than 36 years in various positions at UIVN
Limited. Under his leadership, UJVN Limited has successfully
commissioned several projects over the past four years. These include the Viyasi LHP (120 MW},
Kaliganga—1SHP (4 MW), Kaliganga SHP — 11 (4.5 MW), and solar projects such as Canal Bank and
Canal Top.
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COMPANY LIMITED

(A Joint Venture of THDC India Limited and UJVN Limited)
CIN: U35101UT2023G0OI1016550
Regd. Office : 26 EC Road, Dehradun, Uttrakhand- 248001

@ THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 2" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy
Company Limited is scheduled to be held on 24" September, 2025 at 11:30 A.M. through Video
Conferencing (“VC") using Microsoft Teams deemed to be held at the Registered Office of the
Company at shorter notice, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements together with Auditors’ Report
and Directors’ Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 together with all schedules & annexures forming
part of the financial statements and accounting policies
of the Company, Cash Flow Statement, including the
Report of Statutory Auditor’s and Comments’ of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section
143(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and the Directors’
Report along with all annexures laid before the meeting,
be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2025-26 and in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorised to fix an
appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the
Company, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for the financial year 2025-26."
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3. To appoint a director in place of Shri Suresh Chandra Baluni, (DIN : 08511540 ) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the

provisions of

Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Suresh Chandra Baluni, (DIN :
08511540) Nominee Director, UIVNL, who retires by

rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby
as a Director of the Company.”

re-appointed

By order of the Board of directors of
THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited

Sd/-

(Shakshi Negi)
Company Secretary

M-

To:

AllShareholders of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited.
All Directors of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited.
Statutory Auditors—M/s Ansul Agrawal & Company, Chartered Accountants.

Date:18.09.2025
Place: Rishikesh

8650927633
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The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("“MCA”)
has, vide its General Circular dated
September 19, 2024, read together with
circulars dated April 8 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021,
December §, 2021, December 14, 2021,
May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and
September 25, 2023 (collectively referred
to as "MCA Circulars”), permitted conven-
ing the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM” /"Meeting”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”), without physical pres-
ence of the members at a commaon venue.
In accordance with the MCA Circulars and
applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rules made
thereunder, the AGM of the Company is
being held through VC/OAVM. The
deemed venue for the AGM shall be the
registered office of the Company.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be
deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company
situated at 26 EC Road, Dehradun,
Uttarakhand-248001 which shall be the
deemed Venue of the AGM. Since the
AGM will be held through VC, the Route
Mapis notannexed in this Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a
member entitled to attend and vote at
the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the
proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC
/ OAVM, physical attendance of
Shareholders has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Shareholders will not be

10.
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available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form is not annexed to this Notice.

Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the
MCA Circulars through VC/ OAVM, physical
attendance of Shareholders has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, Attendance
Slipis notannexedto this Notice.

Corporate shareholders are requested to
send to the Company, a duly certified copy
of the board resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote at the
AGM. The said Resolution/Authorization
shall be sent to the Company by email
through its registered email address to
shakshinegi@thdc.co.in

Shareholders seeking any information with
regard to any matter to be placed at the
AGM, are requested to write to the Company
on or before 21* September 2025 through
email on shakshinegi@thdc.co.in. The same
will be replied by the Company suitably.

Since the AGM is convened on shorter
notice, the format for consent of shorter
notice is attached to this notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA
Circulars, Notice of the AGM is being sent
only through electronic mode to those
Shareholders whose email addresses are
registered with the Company.

Shareholders attending the AGM
through VC / OAYM shall be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

The Designated Email Address for the
Company is shakshinegi@thdc.co.in
Shareholders in case of any query may
send an email to shakshinegi@thdc.co.in
Subject to receipt of requisite number of
votes, the Resolution proposed in the
MNotice shall be deemed to be passed on
the date of the Meeting.
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12. Pursuant to Section 20(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014,
as amended, Companies are permitted to
send official documents to their
shareholders electronically.

13. Additional information as required by
Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
in respect of Director seeking appoint-
ment/ re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting is furnished as
Annexure to the Notice and marked as
Annexure - 1.

Procedure for inspection of documents:

All documents referred to in the Notice will
also be available electronically for inspection
without any fee by the members from the date
of circulation of this Notice up to the date of

ANNUAL REPORT
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AGM. The Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which the Directors are interested, main-
tained under Section 189 of the Act, and the
relevant documents referred to in the Notice
will be available electronically for inspection
by the members. Member who intends to
inspect such documents are requested to
send an email to Company on email address
shakshinegi@thdc.co.in.

Voting by Members:

Member to convey his vote by show of hands
in the AGM as the total number of members
are less than 50. However, if the poll is
demanded in the AGM, members are
requested to send the email of their decision
of voting on the designated e-mail ID of the
Company.

Annexure-|

Brief Resume of Directors seeking re-appointment

Name of the Director

Shri Suresh Chandra Baluni

Age 61 years
Date of birth 01.08.1964
Date of Appointment 01.12.2023

Experience
Directorships held/ KMP in other

36+ Years of vast and rich experience

Companies/Forums 2
| Memberships/Chairmanships of

Committees of other Companies

(excluding Section 8 Companies, Foreign

Companies and Private Companies) N.A.
Number of shares held in the Company 01

Relationship with other Directors

No inter-se relation between directors

during the year

Number of the Meetings of the Board attended

3 (Three)

Remuneration

Nil

Terms of Appointment

Liable to retire by Rotation
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Dear Members,
Your directors are pleased to present the 2"  THE COMPANY :JOURNEY SO FAR
Annual Report on the working of your com-
pany along with Audited financial statements,
Statutory Auditors’ Report and Comments of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for
the Financial Year ended on 31%* March 2025.

1. THDCIL and WVWYN Limited (UJVNL) has
entered into the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) on 06.03.2023 to
harness the untapped potential of Hydro
Power Projects in Uttarakhand.
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Signing of MOU between THDCIL and UJVNL

R o S ® N .

- ———



/é) ), niummpnm

-

2024-25

Shri R.K.Vishnoi, CMD, THDCIL and Dr. Sandeep Singhal, MD, UJVNL signing MOU
to form a Joint venture company between THDCIL and UJVNL.

2. A Joint Venture agreement cum Share Managing Director, UIVNL on 23.10.2023
Holders Agreement was signed by in the presence of Secretary (Energy),
Director (Technical), THDCIL and Govt. of Uttarakhand, Dehradun.
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Signing of Joint Venture agreement cum Share Holders Agreement

THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited
was incorporated as a Public Limited
Company vide CIN U35101UT2023-
GOI016550 on 1* December 2023 with
an authorized capital of ¥50,00,00,000

has granted the responsibility for the
development and commissioning of
three Hydro Electric projects and two PSP
totalling 1719 MW in Uttarakhand to
THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited.

and Paid-up Capital of ¥10,00,00,000 to
be contributed by both the promoters,
namely, THDC India Limited and UJVN
Limited in the ratio of 74:26 respectively.

(1) Pungarh—Matiyala PSP Scheme (600MW)

(2) Jaspalgarh PSP (630 MW)

(3) Urthing Sobla HEP (280 MW)

(4) Mori TuiniHEP (63 MW)

(5) Bogudiyar Sirkaribhyol Hydro Electric
Project (146 MW)

4. During Uttarakhand Energy Conclave-
2023 on 05.12.2023 at Dehradun,
Hon’ble Chief Minister of Uttarakhand

TINATICHN

A UTTARAKHAND

UTTARAKHAND
ENERCY !EENCLA‘JE

Hon'ble CM Shri Pushkar Singh Dhami and Shri Bhupender Gupta, Nominee Director

THDCIL at the Uttarakhand Energy Conclave-2023 on 05.12.2023
g
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Particulars Yearended Year ended
31*March2025 | 31* March 2024
(AmountinLakhs) | (Amountin Lakhs)
Turnover 0.00 0.00
Gross Profit (PBIT) (29.27) (64.14)
Total Comprehensive Income /Loss (19.57) (49.55)
Equity Share Capital 1000.00 1000.00
Net Worth 930.88 950.45
Capital Employed 906.59 935.86
Dividend 0.00 0.00
Current Ratio 1.67 3.97
Debt Equity 0.00 0.00

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

All along the year under review, the Company
commenced its business, and all the projects
of the company are in survey and investigation
phase. The company incurred a loss of ¥19.57
lakhs during the financial year ended 31*
March 2025.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Status of HEPs allotted to TUECO:

Government of Uttarakhand, vide letter dated
05.12.2023, allocated three Hydro Electric
Projects (HEPs) to THDCIL-UJVNL Energy
Company Ltd.:

1. Mori Hanol Hydro Electric Project
(63 MW) in Uttarkashi,

2. Urthing Sobla Hydro Electric
Project (280 MW) in Pithoragarh

1)

3. Bogudiyar Sirkari Bhyol Hydro
Electric Project (146 MW) in
Pithoragarh

Mori Hanol Hydro Electric Project
(63 MW) in Uttarkashi:

The preparation of the Detailed Project
Report (DPR) for Mori-Hanol Hydro-
electric Project (63 MW) has been
awarded to M/s TATA Consulting
Engineers Limited (TCE Ltd.). Con-
currently, Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) and Environmental
Management Plan (EMP) studies for the
project have been entrusted to M/s
WAPCOS Limited. As the project falls
within the buffer zone of the Govind
Wildlife Sanctuary, permission for survey
and investigation was sought through the
PARIVESH Portal of MOEF and a joint site
inspection was conducted with Forest
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and Administrative officials. Prior
clearance from the standing committee
of the National Board for Wildlife will be
required before Environmental
Clearance.

WAPCQOS has completed first-season pre-
maonsoon baseline studies at the project
site, which includes assessments of
ambient air quality. Terms of Reference
(ToR) application for the project was
submitted through Parivesh portal, as per
the regulatory requirements for environ-
mental clearance.

In compliance with MoEF notification
2006 (issued in April 2015) “@ minimum
of 1 km distance from the tip of the
reservoir to the tail race tunnel should be
maintained between upstream and
downstream projects.” To comply with
this requirement of free flow stretch of 1
KM from u/s hydro project Naitwar-Mori
(60MW) operated by SIVNL, the location
of barrage of Mori HEP has been shifted to
more than 2km downstream, due to
which there is a substantial head loss,
resulting in a reduction of power capacity
initially projected for Mori Hanol HEF,
now is evaluated to 58 MW from 63MW.
Similarly, this condition is also applicable
to the downstream hydro project Hanol-
Tuini (60MW), allocated to UJVNL.

In addition to above, MoEF also states
that “the minimum environmental flow
must be maintained in rivers, varying
seasonally between 20% and 30% of the

©

river's discharge.” This requirement also
had adverse impact resulted in further
reduction of the power generation
capacity of these hydro projects, as less
water is available for generating electric-

ity.

In compliances with the above stipulated
conditions, 1** consultation chapters of
DPR of Mori-Hanol HEP (63MW revised
to 58 MW) have been submitted by M/S
TCE. The proposed tariff has been
assessed and found to be economically
unviable, estimated at approximately
79.04 per kWh. A similar economic
unviability has also been observed for
the down-stream Mori-Tuini project.

Hence, THDCIL requested to Secretary
(Energy) to Integrate both the Hydro
Projects i.e. Mori-Hanol and Hanol-Tuini
HEPs into a single Hydro Project Mori-
Tuinionriver Tons.

In a meeting held on 15.01.2025,
Secretary (Energy), GoUK agreed to
prepare the Detailed Project Report as
an integrated hydro project of Mori-
Hanol HEP and downstream Hanol-Tuini
(currently allotted to UJVNL) to make
them economically viable. Accordingly,
the process for preparing the Detailed
Project Report for the integrated scheme
has been initiated by M/s Convolution
Engineering Consultancy(CEC) on behalf
of UIVNL. Topographical survey & Power
House location have been finalized by
M/s CEC at Tuini and topographical-
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survey of Mori Hanol has been merged.

The Feasibility Report for integration
Mori- Tuini Hydro-Electric Project has
been prepared by M/s CEC and is being
submitted to GoUK for further apprisal.

Mori-Tuini HEP is envisaged to have
capacity of 102 MW, with an estimated
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annual generation of approximately
432.43 million units (MU). Completed
Project Cost (with Escalation, Interest
during construction and financial service
charges etc.) estimate for the project is
1138578.99 lakh. The expected levelized
tariff for the generated electricity is
approximately ¥ 7.26 per Unit.
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o Drilling work in progress by M/s TCE Ltd.
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Urthing Sobla Hydro Electric
Project (280 MW): On Dhauliganga
& Bogudiyar Sirkari Bhyol Hydro
Electric Project (146 MW): On
Gauriganga

These two projects are situated in
Pithoragarh District in Uttarakhand
on Dhauliganga/Gauriganga rivers.
Both projects have been put on
hold in accordance with the advice
provided by CEA based on restric-
tion imposed by MolS vide its letter
dated 24.01.2019, which states,
“This ministry is not in favour of
construction of any other Hydro-
electric project in Ganga Basin of
Uttarakhand”. While these projects
are neither listed among the 23
banned projects of Uttarakhand nor
under Supreme Court review.

In this context, THDCIL requested
Secretary (MolS) to grant the neces-
sary clearances stating that “the
Dhauliganga & Gauriganga Rivers
are tributary of River Sharda, within
the geographical jurisdiction of
Pithoragarh District, does not form a
part of the Ganga Basin in the State of
Uttarakhand. Additionally, there are
no restrictions imposed by the
Honourable Supreme Court or any
other regulatory authority against the
development of Hydropower projects
on rivers outside the Ganga Bosin of
Uttarakhand”. Further activity on the
project will resume as soon as neces-
sary instructions or clearances are
received.

Status of PSPs allotted to TUECO:

. N

Government of Uttarakhand
provided consent to initiate the

1)

2)

@

Pre-Feasibility Report (PFR) and
Detailed Project Report (DPR) for
following two self-identified
Pumped Storage Plants (PSPs) vide
letter dated December 5, 2023:
Pungarh-Matiyala Pump Storage
Plant (600 MW) in Tehri-Garhwal
Jaspalgarh Pump Storage Plant
(630 MW) in Pauri-Garhwal,
Uttarakhand
Pungarh-Matiyala named as
‘Shivpuri Pump Storage Plant’ (600
MW):

Pre-feasibility report of Shivpuri
Pumped Storage Project was
prepared and submitted by M/s
TCE in March-24 to THDCIL. The
proposed upper dam is located on
the Chamol Gad River and the
proposed lower dam is located
across Hiyuni / Henval River, a
tributary of Ganga River. As per
advice of CEA, the PSP is kept on
hold based on restriction imposed
by MolSvide letter dated 24.01.2019.
Further, activity on the project will
resume as soon as necessary
instructions or clearances are
received.

Jaspalgarh Pump Storage Plant
(630 MW) in Pauri-Garhwal in
Uttarakhand:

PFR of Jaspalgarh PSP has been
prepared by M/s TCE. The PFR
concluded that the projectis falling
in the core zone of Rajaji National
Park and the technical and financial
parameters are not favorable for
investment, rendering the project
unviable. On request of THDCIL,
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M/s TCE reviewed the Pre-
Feasibility Report and confirmed
that there are no viable project sites
within a 12-15 km radius of the CEA-
identified location for the
Jaspalgarh Pump Storage Plant in
Pauri Garhwal District.
Consequently, it has been decided
to discontinue any further work on
this project.

Further, this on-stream PSP is also
situated on tributaries of Ganga
River, hence CEA also advised that
in absence of any specific direction
for P5Ps in Ganga Basin, similar
restriction is applied.

On an advice of management of
THDCIL, to identify the Off-Stream
PSP preferably, the alternative off
stream PSP location was searched/
identified on Google Earth website
and accordingly a committee was
constituted comprising of the
members from D&E Civil, EMD,
G&G, S&I, S&E and TUECO Ltd. to
visit the surrounding area physi-
cally.

Accordingly, the committee carried
out a desk study and identified an
alternate closed-loop off-stream
PSP, named ‘Jaspalgarh-Satichaur’.
During visit to site on 10/01/2025, it
is found that the identified

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of the company is comprised of directors nominated by THDCIL and UJVNL. As on
31.03.2025, there are four nominee directors including Chairman nominated by THDCIL in the
Board of the company and two (2) nominee directors of UIVNL appointed in your company.
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alternative location for the
proposed PSP appears to be techni-
cally suitable, but falls within the
Malan and Gwalgarh blocks part of
the Kotdwar range of the
Lansdowne Forest Division inside
the buffer zone of the Rajaji Tiger
Reserve. Development of
Hydro/Pumped Storage Power
(PSP) projects in this area is regu-
lated under the Wildlife (Protec-
tion) Act. Additionally, a draft Eco
Sensitive Zone Notification for
Rajaji is under examination of
MoEF&CC. This regulatory con-
straint could pose significant
challenges in obtaining the neces-
sary clearances for further surveys
and investigation activities at the
site. Moreover, the approach to the
identified site is not accessible from
either side, i.e., from Kanvashram
or Satichaur.

Request to GoUK to Allocate Other
Projects

CEO, TUECO has formally requested
to Secretary (Energy), GoUK, to
consider the restriction imposed by
MolS for Ganga Basin and, in the
Lieu of these stalled Projects,
allocate some additional hydro
projects where work can com-
mence immediately.

The details of the Board of Directors viz. their names, designation, the number of Directorships
and their presence on the board meeting of the company are given herein below:
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S.| Name of the Designation No. of Meeting Board Meetings
No. Directors other held Attended | Percentage
directorship| during of
the tenure Attendance
1. | ShriRajeevKumar Chairman & 3 4 4 100%
Vishnoi Nominee Director
2. | ShriBhupender | Nominee Director 4 4 4 100%
Gupta
3. | ShriSipan Kumar | Nominee Director 1 2 2 100%
Garg*
4. | ShriLaxmiPrasad | Nominee Director - 4 3 75%
Joshi
5. | Dr.5andeep Nominee Director 3 4 4 100%
Singhal
6. | ShriSuresh Nominee Director 2 4 3 75%
Chandra Baluni

*Shri Sipan Kumar Garg appointed on the
Board of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company
Limited w.e.f. 06.09.2024,

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were

held during the year under review. The neces-
sary quorum was present for the meeting. The
table below shows attendance of the Board
members in Board meetings held during the
FY.2024-25:

B . N

S. | Date of Board Meeting No. of DirectorsontheBoard No. of Director attended
No. the meeting

i 10t April 2024 5 5

2. | 10*"May 2024 5 4

3. | 6™September2024 6 6

4. | 27" December 2024 6 5

KMP (KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)

As per the Section 203(1) of Companies
Act,2013, and Rule 8 of Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 every company
belonging to prescribed class or classes of
companies shall have the whole-time Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP). Accordingly, as

on 31.03.2025, your company has designated
following key managerial personnel:

1. Shri Sandeep Kumar, Chief Executive
Officer

2. ShriS. K. Mohanty, Chief Financial Officer
3. Ms, ShakshiNegi, Company Secretary
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Details of remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel paid for the FY. 2024-25 are given below:
(Amount in )

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel
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S. |Nameof KMP Designation Salary & Bonus & PRP Total
No. Allowances |Commission|
1 |ShriSandeep Chief Executive
Kumar Officer 76,55,376.00 2 5,85,499.00| 82,40,875.00
2 |ShriS.K. Chief Financial
Mohanty* Officer
(07-08-2024 10
31-03-2025) 26,72,250.00 - 2,28,821.00| 20,01,071.00
3 |ShriA.P.Bajpai* |[ChiefFinancial
Officer
(01-04-2024to
06-08-2024) 14,89,300.94 - 14,89,300.94
4 |Ms. Shakshi Negi*|Company
Secretary 11,60,489.00 - - 11,60,489.00

* Not on TUECO'’s roll.
CAPITALSTRUCTURE DIVIDEND
Share Capital:

As on 31* March 2025, the Authorized Share
Capital of the Company is ¥ 50 Crore (Rupees
Fifty Crore) divided into 5,00,00,000 Equity

Shares of ¥ 10 each. The subscribed and paid-
up share capital of the company is T 10 (ten)
crore. The equity of the company is shared
between THDCIL and UJVN Limited in the ratio
of 74% and 26% respectively.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN:

S.No. | Name of Shareholders Total Shares | % To Equity

1 THDC India Limited including Nominee Shareholders 74,00,000 74%

2 LIVN Limited including Nominee Shareholders 26,00,000 26%
Total 100%

o

=)

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

=

B THDC India Limited
including Nominee
Shareholders

B UJVN Limited including
Noeminee Shareholders

b
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Dividend:

During the FY. 2024 - 25, Your Company has not
paid or declared any dividend.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES & SURPLUS

During the FY. 2024 - 25, Your Company has
incurred a loss of ¥19.57 Lakh. Hence, no
amount was transferred to Reserves and

Surplus.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the appoint-
ment of Statutory Auditors for the FY. 2024 —
25 is made by Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013. M/s ANSUL AGARWAL &
CO, Chartered Accountants, 198, Mohit Vihar,
Behind Carmel School, GMS Road, Dehradun-
248006, were appointed as Statutory Auditor
of the Company by C & AG vide letter
No./CA.V/ COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,
THUJEC (1)/1183 dated 21.09.2024 under
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS ON THE
STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Statutory Auditor of the Company
have given an unqualified report on the
Accounts of the Company for the Financial
Year 2024-25. Hence, the comment of the
Companyis ‘Nil’.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS AND COMMENTS OF
COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA

@

The Comments of Comptroller & Auditor
General of India as supplement to the
Statutory Auditors’ Report under Section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the
Accounts of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025 are enclosed.

The C&AG have decided ‘Not to Conduct’ the
supplementary Audit of the financial state-
ments of THDCIL- UJVNL Energy Company
Limited for the period ended 31 March, 2025
under Section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES
GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED

There have been no loans or guarantees given,
investments made, or securities provided
during the Financial Year 2024-25.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL,
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders were
passed by any regulator or court or tribunal
impacting the going concern status and
company's operations during the FY. 2024-25.

DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

During the period ended March 31, 2025,
neither any application is made nor any

proceeding is pending under the Insolvency



and Bankruptecy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT
OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONETIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION
DONEWHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF DURING THE PERIOD
ENDED MARCH 31,2025

Your Company has not made any one-time
settlement in respect any loan taken from
Banks or Financial Institutions.

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF MICRO AND
SMALL ENTERPRISES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025
A5 REQUIRED BY THE MICRO, SMALL &
MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT,
2006 (MSMED ACT) AND THE SAID
OUTSTANDING IS LESS THAN 45 DAYS

During the year under review, the Company
has made ¥6.05 lakh transaction with the
MSMEs.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In compliance to section 134(3)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby
confirm the following:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explana-
tion relating to material departures;

(b) The Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent so asto give a true
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and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the company
forthat period;

(c) The Directors had taken proper and suffi-
cient care for the maintenance of ade-
quate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safe-
guarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) The Directors had prepared the annual

accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The Directors, in the case of a listed com-
pany, had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effec-
tively.

(f) The Directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions
of allapplicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

There are 9 employees posted in the company
and the manpower structure is reviewed from
time to time to align it with the organization’s
requirements.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

L = gy —~d “"Yltfi?f‘ﬂ
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During the Financial Year 2024-25, the
Company has not entered into any material
transaction with any of its related party in
terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act
2013. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions
are made in form AOC-2 is enclosed as
required under clause (h) of sub-section (3) of
section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
ANDOUTGO:

The information for the year is NIL as the
project is presently survey and investigation

phase.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL ACT 2013)

We are pleased to report that there were no
instances of sexual harassment reported

during the year.
IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk managementis a vital element of effective
governance, particularly in today's competi-
tive business landscape. Your Company adopts
a systematic process to identify, assess, and
mitigate potential risks, ensuring the protec-
tion of its strategic, financial, and operational

objectives.

@

ANNUALRETURN

The Company is in the process of developing
an official website. Annual return of the
Company in accordance to section 92(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is disclosed
in the website of the holding company
i.e. THDC India Limited. The web link for
accessing the Annual return is as below:
https://thdc.co.in/fen/content/joint-
venturessubsidiaries

DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

THDCIL-UIVNL Energy Company Limited is a
Joint Venture Company formed by THDC India
Limited and UJVN Limited. As on 31** March
2025, THDC India Limited holds 74% of the
paid-up share capital of the Company, while
UJVN Limited holds the remaining 26%.
Accordingly, THDC India Limited is the holding
company of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company
Limited.

The Company does not have any subsidiary,
jointventure, or associate company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

The provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to managerial
remuneration are not applicable to
Government Companies. Accordingly, no
disclosure in this regard is required. Further,
none of the employees of the Company were
in receipt of remuneration in excess of the
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limits prescribed under the said provisions and
the rules made thereunder.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIALSTANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company
has complied with applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of the
Company Secretaries of India.

DECLARATION REGARDING INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

As per the notifications issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs dated July 5, 2017 and
September 5, 2017, Joint Venture Companies
have been exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on their
Board. Accordingly, your Company, being a
Joint Venture, is not required to appoint

Independent Directors.
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

¢  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

There have been no material changes and

commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the finan-
cialyeari.e.31st March 2025.

e COSTRECORDS

Cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
are not required to be made and main-
tained by the Company for the FY.2024-
2025.

na AT firE
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

* PUBLICDEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2024-25,
your Company has not accepted any
public deposit within the meaning of
Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act,
2013 read together with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

¢ INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROLS

The Company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year,
such controls were tested and no report-
able material weakness in the design or
operation was observed. The Statutory
Auditor of the Company i.e. M/s ANSUL
AGARWAL & CO, Chartered Accountants
have in their report stated that the
Company has in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial control
system with reference to financial

reporting.
* CHANGEIN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of
business of the Company during the
financial year 2024- 25.

¢ LOANSFROMDIRECTOR

During the year under review the
Company has not taken any loan from
any director.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors of your Company

conveys its profound appreciation for the
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steadfast support and cooperation extended
by the Uttarakhand State Government and its
various Ministries, and the officers of the
Government of Uttarakhand in all our endeav-

ors.

Your Directors express sincere gratitude to all
stakeholders, business partners, and members
of the Company for their faith, trust, and
confidence in the Board.

Your directors place on record their deep
appreciation for the dedicated efforts,
commitment, and enthusiasm of the employ-
ees of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited
at all levels, which have been instrumental in
ensuring the Company’s sustained growth and

pursuit of excellence.

We also gratefully acknowledge the valuable

suggestions and continued support received

©

from our Statutory Auditors and the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

Finally, | extend my personal thanks to my
esteemed colleagues on the Board and look
forward to their continued encouragement,
wise counsel, and valuable guidance in the

times ahead.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

(R.K. Vishnoi)

Chairman & Nominee Director
DIN: 08534217

Date : 24.09.2025

Place : Dehradun

o
W\""\ﬁ B N



&

na AT firE
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : Nil
a) Name(s)oftherelated party and nature of relationship : NA
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions . NA
c) Duration ofthe contracts /arrangements/transactions . NA
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions

including the value, if any : NA
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements

or transactions . NA
f) Datels)ofapproval by the Board . NA
g) Amount paid as advances, if any © NA
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 : NA

2) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis :

There was no material contract or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length
basis during the period under review:

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship : NA

b} MNature of contracts/arrangements/transactions . NA

c}) Durationofthe contracts /arrangements/transactions . NA

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions

including the value, if any . NA

e) Date(s)ofapproval bythe Board, ifany . NA

f) Amount paid as advances, ifany . NA
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-
(R.K. Vishnoi)
Date : 24.09.2025 Chairman & Nominee Director
Place : Dehradun DIN: 08534217
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

CIN :U35101UT2023G0I1016550

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-March-2025

T in Lakh

Particulars

Mote No.

Asat31-Mar-2025

Asat31-Mar-2024

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plantand Equipment
(b) RightofUse Assets
(c) OtherlIntangible Assets
[d) Capital work-in- progress
(e} Financial Assets
(i) InvestmentinSubsidiary Co.
(i) Loans
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
{g) NonCurrent Tax Assets Net
{h) Other Mon-Current Assets
Current Assets
{a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(i} Cashand Cash Equivalents
(iii) Loans
(iv) Advances
(v) Others
(c) CurrentTaxAssets (Net)
(d) Other Current Assets
Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balance

27.31

669.09

24.29

518.78
5.49

7.49

180.03

14.59

1,000.25

1,000.25

Total

1,244.96

1,202.35

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b} OtherEquity

Total Equity
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i} Borrowings

(ia) Lease Liabilities

(ii) Mon current Financial Liabilities
(b) OtherNon Current Liabilities
{c) Provisions

1,000.00
(69.12)
930.88

1,000.00
(49.55)
950.45

R
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% in Lakh
Particulars Note No. | Asat 31-Mar-2025 Asat31-Mar-2024

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings = .
(ia) Lease Liabilities - -
(ii) Trade Payables - -

A. Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -

B. Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises - -

(iii) Others 9 308.59 308.59 250.47 | 25047
(b) OtherCurrent Liabilities 10 5.48 0.15
(c) Provisions 11 - 1.28
(d) CurrentTax Liabilities (Net) - -
Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balance - -
TOTAL 1,244.96 1,202.35
Material Accounting Policies 1
Disclosures on Financial Instruments and
Risk Management 15
Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts 16

Mote 1 to 16 form an integral part of
the Accounts

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/f-
(Shakshi Negi) (5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) (R.K. Vishnoi)
Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O. Chairman
Membership No. 62829 DIN:08534217

Date :16.05.2025 As per our Report of even date attached
Place : Rishikesh For Ansul Aggarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 500112N of ICAI

Sd/-
(CA. Ansul Aggarwal)
Partner

Date :17.05.2025 Membership No.:-092048
Place : Dehradun
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G0I016550

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-March-2025

T in Lakh

Particulars Note Forthe Year FortheYear
Mo. | Period Ended Period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

INCOME

Revenue from Operations - -

Other Income 12 5491 -
Total Income 54.91 -
EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense 13 82.41 22.26

Finance Costs i z

Depreciation & Amortisation 2 | -

Generation Administration and Other Expenses 14 177 41,88

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts, CWIP and
Stores & Spares - -

Total Expenses 84.18 64.14
Profit/ (Loss) Before Regulatory Deferral Account
Balances, Exceptional Items and Tax (29.27) (64.14)

Exceptional ltems- (Income)/ Expenses- Net - -

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax and Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances (29.27) (64.14)

Tax Expenses

Current Tax

Income Tax - -
Deferred tax- (Asset)/ Liability (9.70)| {14.59)
Profit/ (Loss) For The Period before regulatory

deferral account balances (19.57) (49.55)

Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balance
Income/ (Expense)- Net of Tax - -

| Profit/ (Loss) For The Period from continuing
operations (19.57) (49.55)

I OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(i} Itemsthatwill not be classified to Profit or Loss:
—— .
o \M_
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% in Lakh
Particulars Note For the Year Forthe Year
Mo. | Period Ended Period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Re-measurements of the Defined Benefit Flans - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income (1+l1) (19.57) (49.55)
Earning per Equity Share (including net movement
in regulatory deferral account)
Basic (T) (0.20) (1.49)
Diluted (¥) {0.20) (1.49)
Earning per Equity Share (excluding net movement
in regulatory deferral account)
Basic(3) (0.20) (1.49)
Diluted (%) {0.20) (1.49)
Material Accounting Policies
Disclosures on Financial Instruments and
Risk Management 15
Other Explanatory Motes to Accounts 16
Mote 1to 16 formanintegral part of the Accounts
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/f- Sd/- Sd/-
(Shakshi Negi) {5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) (R.K. Vishnoi)
Company Secretary C.FO. C.E.O. Chairman
Membership No. 62829 DIN:08534217
Date :16.05.2025 As per our Report of even date attached

Place : Rishikesh

For Ansul Aggarwal & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRM 500112N of ICAI

Sd/-

(CA. Ansul Aggarwal)

Partner

Date :17.05.2025 Membership No.:-092048

Place : Dehradun
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

CIN :U35101UT2023G0OI1016550

©

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-March-2025

% in Lakh

Particulars

Forthe Year
Period Ended
31-Mar-2025

Forthe Year
Period Ended
31-Mar-2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax

Add: Net Movement in Regulatory Deferal
Account Balances (net of tax)

Add: Tax on Net Movement in Regulatory
Deferal Account Balances

Profit Before Tax including movements in
regulatory deferral account balances

Adjustments for :-
Depreciation
Depreciation- Irrigation Companent
Provisions
Finance Cost
Profit on Sale of Assets
Loss on Sale of Assets
Interest on Bank deposits
Prior Period Adjustments through S50CIE
Exceptional Items

Cash Flow from Operating profit activities
Before Working Capital Changes

Adjustment For :-
Inventories
Trade Receivables (including unbilled revenue)
Other Assets
Loans and Advances ( Current + Non Current)
Minority Interest
Trade Payable and Liabilities
Provisions (Current + Non Current)

Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral
Account Balance

Cash Flow From Operative Activities Before Taxes
Corporate Tax
Net Cash From Operations (A)

(54.91)

(29.27)

(29.27)

(54.91)

(84.18)

56.69
(27.49)

(27.49)

250.62
1.28

(64.14)

(64.14)

(64.14)

251.90
187.76

187.76

i \H“h
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T in Lakh
Particulars For the Year For the Year
Period Ended Period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in :-
Purchase of Fixed Assets and CWIP (508.88) [187.52)
Proceeds of Fixed Assets and C\WIP - -
Capital Advances - -
Grants - -
Interest on Bank deposits 54.91 -
Late Payment Surcharge - -
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents - -
MNet Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B) (453.97) (187.52)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital (Including Pending Allotment) - 1,000.00
Repayment of Borrowings - Mon Current - -
Proceeds of Borrowings - Non Current - -
Borrowings- Current - -
Lease Liability - -
Interest and Finance Charges - -
Dividend - -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C) - 1,000.00
D. NET CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) (481.47) 1,000.25
E. OPENING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,000.25 -
F. CLOSING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (D+E) 518.78 1,000.25
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- 5d/- Sd/- sd/f-
(Shakshi Negi) (5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) (R.K. Vishnoi)
Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O, Chairman
Membership No. 62829 DIN:0B8534217
Date :16.05.2025 As per our Repart of even date attached

Place : Rishikesh

For Ansul Aggarwal & Co

Charteraed Accountants
FRM 500112M of ICAI

Sd/-

{CA. Ansul Aggarwal)

Partner

Date :17.05.2025 Membership No.:-092048

Place : Dehradun
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G01016550

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A  Equity Share Capital

(1) Current Reporting Period Ended 31-March-2025 % in Lakh
Particulars Note No. | Asat31-Mar-2025
Amount

Balance at the beginning of reporting period 1,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period -

Closing Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,000.00
(2) Previous Reporting Period Ended 31-March-2024 e
Particulars Note No. | Asat31-Mar-2024

Amount
Balance at the beginning of reporting period -
Changesin equity share capital during the period 1,000.00
Closing Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,000.00
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- 5d/- sd/- Sd/-
(Shakshi Negi) (5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) (R.K. Vishnoi)
Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.C. Chairman
Membership No. 62829 DIMN:08534217
Date :16.05.2025 As per our Report of even date attached
Place : Rishikesh For Ansul Aggarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN 500112M of ICAI

Sd/-
(CA. Ansul Aggarwal)
Partner

Date :17.05.2025 Membership No.:-092048
Place : Dehradun
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B  OtherEquity-

(1) Current Reporting Period Ended 31-March-2025 % in Lakh
Particulars Note| Share Reserve & Surplus Other | Total | Non- | Total
No. | Application 01-Apr-2024  Comprehensive controlling
Monay To 31-Mar-2025 | Income Interests
Aﬁg;'t“:"l“g - ¢ Retained Debenture Acturial
M| Earnings Redemption| Gain/ (Loss)
Reserve &
Others
Opening Balance (1) - [ (49.55) - - (49.55) - |(49.55)
Profit For The period (19.57) {19.57) - |{19.57)
Other Comprehensive Income - | - -
Total Comprehensive Income (19.57) - - (({19.57) - |({19.57)
Equity Contribution by Non- [
Controlling Interest - -
Dividend - - -
Tax On Dividend - | z -
Transfer to Retained Earnings (1) (19.57) - - ({19.57) - |{19.57)
Closing Balance (14+1) - | (69.12) - - |{69.12) - |(69.12)
(2) Previous Reporting Period Ended 31-March-2024 i
in La
Particulars Note| Share Reserve & Surplus | Other Total Non- Total
MNo. | Application 01-Apr-2023 Comprehensive controlling
Money To 31-Mar-2024 Income Interests
Pending potained| Debenture Acturial
Allottment : s | -
Earnings Redemption Gain/ (Loss)
Reserve &
Others
Opening Balance (1) - - ] - - - -
Profit For The period (49.55) (49.55) - |(49.55)
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income (49.55) | (49.55) - |[49.55)
Equity Contribution by Mon-
Controlling Interest - -
Dividend - - -
Tax On Dividend - - -
Transferto Retained Earnings (1) (49.55) (49.55) - [(49.55)
Closing Balance (1+1) - | (49.55) - - |{49.55) - |(49.55)
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
sd/- 5dy/- sd/- 5d/-
(Shakshi Negi)} (5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) {R.K. Vishnoi)
Cormpany secretary C.FO. CEQ. Chairman
Membership No. 62829 DIM:08534217
As per our Report of even date attached
Fﬂl': Ansul Aggarwal & Co
7 Chartered Accountants
S FRN 500112N of ICAI
Sd{—
Date : 17.05.2025 (E8 meci g
: artner
FIace: anracun Membership No.:-092048 Py
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Note -1 Company Information and Material

A.

il o

Accounting Policies
Reporting entity

THDCIL-UJVYNL Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is a company
domiciled in India and limited by
shares (CIN:U35101UT2023G0I016550)
and is a Joint Venture Company of
THDC India Limited and Uttarakhand
Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited (UJVNL). The
shares of the Company are held by
THDC India Limited (74 %) and
Uttarakhand Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited
(UIVNL) (26%). The address of the
Company's registered office is 26 EC
Road Dehradun, Dehradun City,
Uttarakhand, India,248001. The
Company is primarily involved in
planning, promotion and develop-
ment of Hydro Power Projects in the
State of Uttarakhand.

Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared on going concern basis
following accrual system of accounting
and comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,
and other provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and
applicable) and the provisions of the
Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent
applicable.

These financial statements were
authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors in its meeting held on
16.05.2025.

-~
2.2 |

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR),
which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded to
the nearest Lakhs, except as stated
otherwise.

Material Accounting Policies

A summary of the material accounting
policies applied in the preparation of
the financial statements are as given
below. These accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all peri-
ods presented in the financial state-
ments.

Estimates & Assumptions

The preparation of financial state-
ments requires estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses during the reporting period.
Although such estimates and assump-
tions are made on a reasonable and
prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual results
could differ from these estimates and
assumptions. Such differences are
recognized in the year in which the
actual results are crystallized.

Property Plant & Equipment {PPE)

PPEs are initially measured at cost
of acquisition / construction including
decommissioning or restoration
cost wherever required. The cost
includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition/
construction of the asset. In cases
where final settlement of bills with
contractors is pending, but the



&

2.2

2.3

2.4

asset is complete and ready for
use, capitalization is done on provi-
sional basis subject to necessary
adjustments, in the year of final
settlement.

Spares parts, stand-by equipment and
servicing equipment meeting the
recognition criteria are capitalized.
The carrying amount of those spare
partsthatarereplaced is derecognized
when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon
disposal. Other spare parts are carried
as inventory and recognized in the
statement of profit and loss on
consumption.

Expenditure on major inspection and
overhauls of generating unit is
capitalized, when it meets the asset
recognition criteria. Any remaining
carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection and overhaul is
derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or
earlier major inspection / overhaul is
not available, the estimated cost of
similar new parts/major inspection
Joverhaul is used as an indication to
arrive at cost of the existing part/
inspection foverhaul component at
the time it was acquired or inspection
carried out.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included
in the Statement of Profit and Loss

2.5

2.6
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for the year in which the asset is
derecognized.

PPE created on land not belonging to
the Company, but under the control
and possession of the Company, are
includedin PPE.

In respect of land acquired through
Special Land Acquisition Officer
(SLAO)/on right to use, those portions
of land are capitalized which are
utilized/intended to be utilized
for construction of buildings and
infrastructural facilities of the
Company. Other lands acquired
including lands under submergence
are accounted for as per their use.

Cost of land acquired through
SLAO is capitalized on the basis of
compensation paid through SLAO or
directly by the Company.

Payments made/liabilities created
provisionally towards compensation,
rehabilitation of the oustees and
other expenses relatable to land in
possession are treated as cost of land.

Capital workin progress

Expenditure incurred on assets under
construction (including a project) is
carried at cost under Capital work in
Progress. Such costs comprise pur-
chase price of asset including import
duties, non-refundable taxes (after
deducting trade discounts and
rebates) and costs that are directly
attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the manage-
ment.
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Cost incurred towards lease amount
and rent on right-of-use land and
compensation forland and properties
etc. used for submergence and other
purposes (such as re- settlement of
oustees, construction of new
Township, afforestation, expenses on
maintenance and other facilities in
there-settlement colonies until
takeover of the same by the local
authorities etc.) and where construc-
tion of such alternative facilitiesisa
specific pre-condition for the
acquisition of the land for the purpose
of the project, is carried forward in
the Capital Work in Progress (Rehabili-
tation). The said asset is capitalized as
Land under submergence from the
date of commercial operation.

Deposit works are accounted for on
the basis of statements of account
received from the Agencies con-
cerned.

In respect of supply-cum-erection
contracts, the value of supplies
received at site is treated as Capital-
Work-in-Progress.

Claims for price variation in case of
contracts are accounted for on accep-
tance.

Cost directly attributable to projects
under construction include costs of
employee benefits, expenditure in
relation to survey and investigation
activities of the projects, cost of site
preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and
assembly costs, professional fees,
depreciation on assets used in
construction of project, and other

4.1

©

costs attributable to construction of
projects. Such costs are allocated on
systematic basis over Construction
projects/Capital Work in Progress.

Development expenditure on coal
mines

Once proved reserves are determined
and development of mines/project is
sanctioned, exploration and evalua-
tion assets are transferred to ‘Devel-
opment of coal mines’ under Capital
work-in progress.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
only where it either enhances the
economic benefits of the develop-
ment/ producing asset or replaces
part of the existing development/
producing asset. Any remaining costs
associated with the part replaced are
expensed.

The development expenditure capital-
ized is net of value of coal extracted
during development phase.

Date of commercial operation of
integrated coal mines shall be deter-
mined on the occurring of earliest of
following milestones as provided in
CERCtariff regulations:

1) The first date of the year succeed-
ing the year in which 25 % of the
peak rated capacity as per the
mining plan is achieved; or

2) The first date of the year succeed-
ing the year in which the value of
production exceeds the total
expenditureinthatyear; or

3) The date of two years from the
date of commencement of pro-
duction;
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4.2

4.3

On the date of commercial operation,
the assets under capital work-in-
progress are classified as a component
of property, plant and equipment
under ‘Mining property’.

Gains and losses on de-recognition of
assets referred above, are determined
as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of respective assets
and are recognized in the statement of
profitand loss.

Stripping activity expense/ adjust-
ment

Expenditure incurred on removal of
mine waste materials (overburden)
necessary to extract the coal reserve is
referred to as a stripping cost. The
Company has to incur such expenses
over the life of the mine as technically
estimated.

Cost of stripping is charged on techni-
cally evaluated average stripping ratio
at each mine with due adjustment for
stripping activity as set and ratio-
variance account after the mines are
brought to revenue.

Net of the balance of stripping activity
as set and ratio variance at the balance
sheet date is shown as ‘Stripping
activity adjustment’ under the head
‘Mon-current asset/Non-current
provisions’ as the case may be, and
adjusted as provided in the CERC Tariff
Regulations,

Mines closure, site restoration and
decommissioning obligations

The Company’s obligation for land
reclamation and decommissioning of
structure consist of spending at mines

na AT firE
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in accordance with the guidelines from
ministry of coal, Government of India.
The Company estimates its obligations
for mine closure, site restoration and
decommissioning based on the
detailed calculation and technical
assessment of the amount and timing
of future cash spending for the
required work and provided for as per
approved mine closure plan. The
estimate of expenses is escalated for
inflation and then discounted at pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value
of money and risk, such that the
amount of provision reflects the
present value of expenditure required
to settle the obligation. The Company
recognizes a corresponding asset
under property, plant and equipment
as a separate item for cost associated
with such obligation. On being brought
to revenue, the mines closure, site
restoration and decommissioning
obligations are amortized on straight
line method over the balance life of
the mine.

The value of the obligation is progres-
sively increased over time as the effect
of discounting unwinds and the same
is recognized as finance costs.

Further, a specific escrow account is
maintained for this purpose as per
approved mine closure plan. The
progressive mine closure expenses
incurred on year to year basis, forming
part of the total mine closure obliga-
tion, are initially recognized as
receivable from escrow account and
thereafter adjusted with obligation in
the year in which the amount is with-
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drawn from escrow account after
concurrence of the certifying agency.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
are measured on initial recognition at
cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses.

Software (not being an integral part of
the related hardware) acquired for
internal use, is stated at cost of acquisi-
tion less accumulated amortization
andimpairment lossesif any.

An item of Intangible asset is
derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset are
recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the year in when the asset
is derecognized.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are
initially recorded at exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction.
At the balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported
using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign cur-
rency are reported at the exchange
rate ruling at the date oftransaction.

FairValue Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly trans-
action between market participants at
the measurement date. Normally at

7.2

1.3

7.4

©

initial recognition, the transaction
priceis the best evidence of fair value.

However, when the Company deter-
mines that transaction price does not
represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation technigques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All financial assets and financial
liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy. This categoriza-
tion is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement asa whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measure-
mentisunobservable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognized at fair value on a recur-
ring basis. The Company reviews the
fair value techniques as to be adopted
at the end of each reporting period
and determines the fair value accord-
ingly applying any of the levels speci-
fied above deemed suitable.
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Financial assets

A financial asset includes inter-alia any
asset that is cash, contractual obliga-
tion to receive cash or another
financial asset or to exchange financial
asset or financial liability under
condition that are potentially
favorable to the Company. A financial
asset is recognized under the circum-
stances when the Company becomesa
party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company
comprise cash and cash equivalents,
Bank Balances, Advances to emp-
loyees, security deposit, claims recov-
erable etc.

Based on existing business model of
the company and contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial
assets, classifications have been made
as follows:

1.) Financial Assets at amortized cost,

2.) Financial Assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income, and

3.) Financial Assets at fair value
through Profit / Loss

Initial recognition and measure-
ment:- All financial assets except trade
receivables are recognized initially at
fair value including the transaction
costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in Statement of
Profit and Loss. Where transaction
price is not the measure of fair value
and fair value is determined using a

8.5

8.6

8.7
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valuation method that uses data from
observable market, the difference
between transaction price and fair
value is recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss and in other cases
spread over life of the financial
instrument using EIR (Effective
Interest Rate) method. EIR is calcu-
lated at the end of every reporting
period.

The company measures the trade
receivables at their transaction price
as it does not contain a significant
financing component.

Subsequent measurement:- After
initial measurement, financial assets
classified at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized
cost using EIR method. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral
partof the EIR. The EIR amortizationis
included in finance income in the
profit or loss.

De-recognition:- A financial asset is
derecognized when all the cash flows
associated with the said financial asset
has been realized or such rights have
expired.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheet comprise cash at banks,
cash on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subjectto an
insignificant risk of changesinvalue.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores
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and spare parts to be used for mainte-
nance of Property, Plant and
Equipment’s and are valued at costs or
net realizable value (NRV) whichever is
lower. The cost is determined using
weighted average cost formula and
NRV is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less
the selling costs necessary to make the
sale.

Carrying amount of inventory is
assessed on each reporting date to
reflect the same at NRV (Net
Realizable Value). Incase reduction of
the carrying amount, suitable adjust-
ment is made by reducing the carrying
amount of the inventory to recognize
at NRY and such amount reduced is
also recognized as expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Subsequent to reduction in the
inventory value in case the NRV
increases (upto the original cost),
value of inventory is enhanced to
recognize at NRV and incremental
amount is recognized as income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. All
inventory losses occur in natural
course of business is recognized as
expenses in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are
contractual obligation to deliver cash
or another financial asset to another
entity or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the
Company.

112
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The Company’s financial liabilities
include loans & borrowings, trade and
other payables.

Classification, initial recognition and
measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value minus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities and
subsequently measured at amortized
cost. Difference arising if any, between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the fair value at initial recognition
is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss or in the “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction” if
another standard permits inclusion of
such cost in the carrying amount of an
asset over the period of the
borrowings using the effective rate of
interest.

11.3.2 Borrowings are classified as current

11.4
11.4.1

11.4.2

liabilities unless the company has an
unconditional right to defer settle-
ment of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the EIR
method. EIR is calculated at the end of
every reporting period Gains and
losses are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that
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are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

De-recognition A financial liability is
derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or
cancelled orexpires.

Government Grants

Grants-in-Aid received from the
Central/State Government/ other
authorities towards capital expendi-
ture is treated initially as non-
operating deferred income under
noncurrent liability and subsequently
adjusted as income in the same pro-
portion as the depreciation written off
on the assets acquired out of such
contribution/grants-in-aid.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the
Company has a present legal or con-
structive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Such provisions are
determined based on management
estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed
on the basis of judgment of manage-
ment / independent experts. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reflected in the financial
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statements using current estimates
made by the management.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the
financial statements when inflow of

economic benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition and Other
Income

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recog-
nized when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation by transfer-
ring promised goods or services to a
customer. An asset is transferred when
control is transferred that is either
over time or at a point in time. The
company recognizes revenue in
respect of amounts to which it has a
right to invoice.

Sale of energy is accounted for as per
final tariff notified by Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission
(CERC). In case of Power Station where
final tariff is not notified, recognition
of revenue is based on the parameters
and method provided in  the applica-
ble Regulations framed by the appro-
priate authority i.e. CERC. The recogni-
tion of Revenue would be independ-
ent of the Provisional Rate adopted for
the purpose of collection pending
notification of ‘Annual Fixed Charges’
by CERC.

Recovery/refund towards foreign
currency variation in respect of foreign
currency loans are accounted for on
year to year basis.

Amount realized from sale of power as
generated from Wind Power Projects
has been recognized as Revenue from
operation in compliance with Ind AS
115 and Assets have been recognized
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as owned assets of the company in
compliance with Ind AS16.

Adjustments arising out of finalization
of Regional Energy Account (REA),
which may not be material, are
effected in the year of respective
finalization.

Incentive/disincentives are accounted
for based on the applicable norms
notified/approved by the Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission or
agreements with the beneficiaries. In
case of Power Stations where the
same have not been notified /
approved / agreed with beneficiaries,
incentives/disincentives are
accounted for on provisional basis.

Advance against depreciation being
considered as deferred income up to
31March 2009 is recognised as sales
on straight line basis over balance
useful life of 28 years after completion
of 12 years from the date of commer-
cial operation of the project, consider-
ing the total useful life of the project as
40 years.

Income from consultancy work is
accounted for on the basis of actual
progress/technical assessment of
work executed or cost reimbursable in
line with terms of respective consul-
tancy contracts.

Late Payment Surcharge recoverable
from trade receivables for sale of
energy and liquidated damages/
warranty claims are recognized when
no significant uncertainty as to
measurability or collectivity exists.

14.9

14.10
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Interest earned on advances to con-
tractors as per the terms of contract,
are reduced from the cost incurred on
construction of the respective asset by
credit to related Capital Work-in-
Progress Account.

Value of scrap is accounted for at the
time of sale.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are
accounted for in the year of accep-
tance. Other insurance claims are
accounted for based on certainty of
realization.

Expenditure

Prepaid expenses of %5,00,000/- or
below in each case, are accounted for
intheir natural heads of accounts.

Material prior period errors are cor-
rected retrospectively by restating the
comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which error
occurred. If the error occurred before
the earliest period presented, opening
balances of assets, liabilities and
equity for the earliest period pre-
sented, are restated.

Net income/expenditure prior to
Commercial operation is adjusted
directly in the cost of related assets
and systems.

Preliminary expenses on account of
new projects incurred prior to
approval of feasibility report are
charged to revenue.

Expenditure on R & D are incurred as
per approved R & D Plan of the
Company.
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Expenditure on CSR activities shall be
made as per the provisions of Section
135 ofthe Companies Act 2013,

Provision for doubtful debts /fadvances
/ claims outstanding over three years
{except Government dues) is made
unless the amount is considered
recoverable as per management
estimate, However, Debts / advances /
claims shall be written off on case to
case basis when unreliability is finally
established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the company are on
secondment from the parent com-
pany. Employee benefits include
provident fund, gratuity, post retire-
ment medical facilities, leave
encashment, long service award,
financial benefits scheme & other
terminal benefits. In terms of arrange-
ment with the parent company, the
company makes contribution of the
aggregate of basic pay and dearness
allowances for the period of service
rendered inthe company towards PF &
Pension Scheme. For other terminal
benefits, the company makes suitable
adjustments as advised by the parent
company. Actuarial gain / Losses if any
shall be accounted by parent com-

pany.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition,
construction/exploration/ develop-
ment or erection of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of cost of such
asset until such time the assets are
substantially ready for their intended

172

18.
18.1

18.2

na AT firE
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

use. Qualifying assets are assets which
necessarily take substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended
use orsale.

When the Company borrows funds
specifically for the purpose of obtain-
ing a qualifying asset, the borrowing
costs incurred are capitalized. When
Company borrows funds generally and
usesthem for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset, the capitalization of
the borrowing costs is computed
based on the weighted average cost of
all borrowings that are outstanding
during the period and used for the
acquisition, construction/exploration
or erection of the qualifying asset.
However, borrowing costs applicable
to borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a gualifying
asset, are excluded from this calcula-
tion, until substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare that
asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Such borrowing costs are apportioned
on the average balance of capital work
in progress for the year. Other bor-
rowing costs are recognized as
expenses in the period in which they
areincurred.

Depreciation & Amortization

Depreciation on additions to /deduc-
tions from Property, Plant &
Equipment during the year is charged
on pro-rata basis from / up to the date
on which the asset is ready for use
/disposal.

Depreciation is charged on straight-
line method following the rates &
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useful life of the projects notified by
the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC). for the purpose of
fixation of tariff. In case of addition and
change in cost of asset due to
increase/ decrease in long-term
liability on account of exchange fluctu-
ations, award of Courts, etc, revised
unamortized depreciable amount is
provided prospectively over the
residual useful life of the asset.

Further, the life of the projects for
Solar and Wind Power Plants which
are not governed by CERC Tariff
Regulations has been considered as 25
years and the depreciation rates have
beenworked out accordingly.

Temporary erections are depreci-
ated fully (100%) in the financial
year of acquisition /capitalization by
retaining 1/-as WDV

In respect of Assets costing up to
5000/- but more than Rs. 1500/-
(excluding immovable assets) 100%
depreciation is provided in the
financial year of purchase.

Low value items costing up to ¥1500/-,
which are in the nature of assets are
not capitalized and charged torevenue

Furniture, Fixture, Office equipment,
IT and other Communication equip-
ment where the life is separately
defined for any specific purpose,
depreciation charged over life of the
asset.

Cost of Right-of-use Land is amortized
over the lease period or life of related
project, whichever is less.

Cost of computer Software is recog-

18.9
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nized as intangible asset and amor-
tized on straight line method over a
period of legal righttouseor3 years,
whichever is earlier.

Spares parts procured along with the
Plant & Machinery or subsequently
which are capitalized and added in the
carrying amount of such item are
depreciated over the residual useful
life of the related plant and machinery
at the rates and methodology notified
by CERC.

Impairment of non-financial assets
other thaninventories

The asset is treated as impaired, when
carrying cost of assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. An impaired loss
is charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impair-
ment loss recognized in prior
accounting periods is reversed if there
is a change in the estimate of the
recoverable amount.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
alease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of anidentified asset
for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(1) the contact involves the use of an
identified asset

(2) the Company has substantially all
of the economic benefits from use



&

of the asset through the period of
the leaseand

(3) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of
the lease, the Company recog-
nizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in whichitis a
lessee, except for:

a) leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases)
and

b) low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating
expense on a straight line basis
overthe term ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include
the options to extend or terminate the
lease before the end of the lease term.
Right-of use assets and lease liabilities
include these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made
at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of
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the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset, if the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset by
the end of lease term or if the cost of
right-of-use assets reflects that the
purchase option will be exercised.
Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are
depreciated /amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying
asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or
changesin circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured
at amortized cost at the present value
of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicitin the lease or,
if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rate. Lease
liabilities are re-measured with a
corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment
whether it will exercise an extension or
atermination option.
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Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of
current and deferred tax. Tax is recog-
nized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive
income. In this case the tax is also
recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current Income Tax

The current tax is based on taxable
profit for the year under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. The current income tax
charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in
India where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized based upon
balance sheet approach. Differences
between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the company’s
financial statements and the corre-
sponding tax bases used in the compu-
tation of taxable profit are accounted
for using the balance sheet method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be
available against which those
deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax

©

credits can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or
liability in the instances where the
transaction affects neither the taxable
profit or loss nor the accounting profit
orloss.

21.2.2 The carrying amount of deferred tax

A P

assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will  be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to
the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in other compre-
hensive income or equity, in which
case it is recognized in other compre-
hensive income or equity. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against
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current tax liabilities, and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabili-
ties relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

The deferred tax for the current period
to the extent it forms part of current
tax in the future years and affects the
computation of return on equity
(ROE), an element of tariff computa-
tion as per CERC Regulation is debited
/ credited to regulatory deferral
account balance.

21.2.4 Deferred tax assets include Minimum

2125

Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accor-
dance with the tax laws in India, which
is likely to give future economic bene-
fits in the form of availability of set off
against future income tax liability. MAT
credit is recognized as deferred tax
asset in the balance sheet when the
asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which MAT credit
can be utilized.

When there is uncertainty regarding
income tax treatments, the Company
assesses whether a tax authority is
likely to accept an uncertain tax treat-
ment. If it concludes that the tax
authority is unlikely to accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
the uncertainty on taxable income, tax
bases and unused tax losses and
unused tax credits is recognized. The
effect of the uncertainty is recognized
using the method that, in each case,
best reflects the outcome of the
uncertainty: the most likely outcome

2.
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or the expected value. For each case,
the Company evaluates whether to
consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately, or in conjunction with
another or several other uncertain tax
treatments, based on the approach
that best prefixes the resolution of
uncertainty.

Statement of Cash Flows-

Statement of cash flows is prepared in
accordance with the indirect method
prescribed in the Ind AS 7. Cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of
Statement of cash flows is inclusive of
cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
However, for Balance Sheet presenta-
tion, Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

Current versus non-current classifica-
tion-
The Company presents assets and

liabilities in the Balance Sheet based
on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it
is:
e Expected to be realized or

intended to be sold or consumed
inthe normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of
trading

* Expected to be realized within

P

twelve months after the reporting .~ =~
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period, or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless
restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-
current.

A liability is classified as current when
itis

* Expected to be settled in the
normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of
trading

* Due to be settled within twelve

months afterthe reporting period,
or

¢ Having no unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months
afterthe reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as
non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Regulatory deferral account balances

Expense/Income recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss to the
extent recoverable from or payable to
the beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per CERC Tariff regulations
are recognized as “Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances”.

These Regulatory Deferral Account
Balances are adjusted from the yearin
which the same become recoverable
from or payable to the beneficiaries.

24.3
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Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
are evaluated at each balance sheet
date to ensure that the underlying
activities meet the recognition criteria
anditis probable that future economic
benefits associated with such balances
will flow to the entity. If these criteria
are not met, the Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances are derecognized.

Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit or
loss attributable to equity sharehold-
ers of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit or
loss attributable to equity sharehold-
ers of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings
per equity share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conver-
sion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any bonus shares issued
during the financial year. Basic and
diluted earnings per equity share are
also computed using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in
regulatory deferral account balances.

Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends
payable to the Company’s sharehold-
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ers are recognized as changes in equity
in the period in which they are
approved by the shareholders and the
Board of Directors respectively.

Operating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the
operating segments used to present
segment information are identified on
the basis of internal reports used by
the Company’s management to
allocate resources to the segments
and assess their performance. The
Board of Directors is collectively the
Company's ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning
of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for
internal reporting purposes may
evolve in connection with perfor-
mance assessment measures put in
place.

Segment results that are reported to
the CODM include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly corporate expenses,
finance costs, income tax expenses
and corporate income.

Revenue directly attributable to the
segments is considered as segment
revenue, Expenses directly attribut-
able to the segments and common
expenses allocated on a reasonable
basis are considered as segment
expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the
total cost incurred during the period to
acquire property, plant and equip-
ment, and intangible assets other than
goodwill.

28.
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Segment assets comprise property,
plant and equipment, intangible
assets, trade and other receivables,
inventories and other assets that can
be directly or reasonably allocated to
segments. For the purpose of segment
reporting, property, plant and equip-
ment have been allocated to segments
based on the extent of usage of assets
for operations attributable to the
respective segments. Segment assets
do not include investments, income
tax assets, capital work in progress,
capital advances, corporate assets and
other current assets that cannot
reasonably be allocated to segments.
Segment liabilities include all
operating liabilities in respect of a
segment and consist principally of
trade and other payables, employee
benefits and provisions. Segment
liabilities do not include equity,
income tax liabilities, loans and
borrowings and other liabilities and
provisions that cannot reasonably be
allocated to segments.

Electricity generation is the principal
business activity of the company.
Project Management and Consultancy
works do not form a reportable seg-
ment as per the Ind AS -108 -
‘Operating Segments’.

Miscellaneous

Each material class of similar items is
presented separately in the financial
statements. ltems of a dissimilar
nature or function are presented
separately unless they are immaterial.
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G0I016550

Note 2 :-
PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS AS AT 31-March-2025 ¥ in Lakh
Particulars __Gross Block ' Depreciation Met Block
As Addition| Salesf | As As For The| Salesf| As | As | As
at | During Adjust-| at at Period | Adjust-| at | at | at
01- the ment | 31- 01- 01-Apr-| ment | 31- | 31- |31-
Apr-  Period |During| Mar- | Apr- 2024 | During |Mar- |[Mar- Mar-
2024 the |2025| 2024 To the |2025|2025 2024
I Period 31-Mar-| Period
| | 2025
A. Property Plant & Equipment
Other Assets
1. Land FreeHold - - - S = - i 5 a :
2.  Land UnderSubmergence - - - £ = z = i £ S
3. Buildings . - - - - s 5 = s =
4, Building Temp. Structures - - - - N - = = & -
5. Road, Bridoe & Culvarts - - = = = - - = & a
6. Drainage, Sewerage & WaterSupply - - - - - - - i = .
7. Construction Plant & Machinery - - - - - - - & = 3
8 Generation Plant & Machinery - - - - - . = = = =
9. EDP Machines - 8497 - | 897 - 229 0.22 [251( 645 -
10. Electrical Installations - - - - - . = - - .
11. Transmission Lines = = = 2 “ = = £ E i
12, Office & Other Equipment 2,62 7.26 | 0.20 |10.08 0.03 1.23 0.19 |1.44( 8.64 | 2.50
13. Furniture & Fixtures 4.94 861 |(0.20) [13.35 0.05 1.06 0.04 |1.14 (12.21] 489
14. Vehicles - - - - = - . " - -
15. Railway Sidings - - - - - - 5 - z -
16. Hydraulic Works-Dam & Spillways - - = - - - - = T o
17. Hydraulic Works-Tunnel, Penstock, Canals etc -1 - - - - - S 5 = =
Sub Total | 7.56 24.84 - [32.40 0.07 4.58 0.45 |5.10 (27.31 | 7.49
Figures from previous period ' -1 756 - | 7.56 - 0.07 - |007 | 749 -
B. Intangible Assets
1. Intangible Assets-Software - - - - - - 5 E 2 -
Sub Total -1 E = 2] 2 : g =
C. RightofUse Assets '
Rightof Use-Land 5 - - - - - - - - -
Right of Use - Building = - - - - - - - . o
Right of Use -Vehicle - = = = = = Z & s 5
Sub Total . - - - - - B “ = a
Figures from previous period - - 2 £ & i = & 2 2
Detail of Depreciation Current Previous
Year Year
Depreciation transferred to EDC 458 0.07
Depreciation transferred to statement of P&L I - -

.
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G0OI016550
Note 2 :-
PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS AS AT 31-March-2024 % in Lakh
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation INet Block

As |Addition Salesf| As As For The| Salesf| As | As | As
at | During |Adjust- at at Period | Adjust-| at | at | at
01- the ment | 31- 01- 01-Apr-. ment | 31- | 31- | 31-
Apr-| Period |During Mar- | Apr- 2023 | During [Mar- |[Mar-| Mar-
2023 the | 2024 | 2023 To the (2024 2024|2023
Period 31-Mar- Period
2024

A, Property Plant & Equipment
Other Assets

Land Free Hold - - = = a %, 3 2 i s
Land Under Submergence - : - - = : = = _ i
Buildings - - - - - = = N 2 -
Building Temp. Structures - - g - = . : 3 . -
Road, Bridge & Culverts = = - - - - - = - .
Drainage, Sewerage & Water Supphy - - - - = & z = 2 £
Construction Plant & Machinery - - - - - - - - u =
Generation Plant & Machinery - - = = = - . : i -
EDP Machines - - - - - - o o . -
Electrical Installations - - = & e 2 . o . -
. Transmission Lines g 2 Z i o & o x = ¥
. Dffice & Other Equipment - 2.62 -| 2.62 - 0.03 - 003 2.59 -
. Furniture & Fixtures - 4,94 -| 4.94 - 0.05 - 0.05|4.89 -
Wehicles - - - - - . . il o -

b 2t B R R

e~ ]
[T TV YU =y =

. Railway sidings - - L = = 2 e = . g
. Hydraulic Works-Dam & Spillways = = - - - . - - g o
17. Hydraulic Works-Tunnel, Penstock, Canals etc - - - - - 2 i E 4 =
Sub Total - 7.56 - 1.56 - 0.07 - 0.07|7.49 -
B. Intangible Assets |
1. Intanglble Assets-Software - - -] - - - - - - 5
Sub Total 5 : - & = 5 2 Z E =
C. RightofUse Assets |
Right of Use-Land - ; & 2 2 g i o 7 &
Right of Use-Building . : . - = - - U i -
Right of Use -Vehicle - 5 . = = a - - . .

[
=]

Sub Total - - - | - - - - - - -
Detail of Depreciation ' Current

| Year -
Depreciation transferred to EDC 0.07 -

Fixed Assets Costing More Than ¥1500.00 But Less Than
T5000.00 Procurad and Depreciated Fully During The Year
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THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G0I016550
Mote:-3.1
EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION % in Lakh
Particulars Note | Fortheyear Fortheyear
No. | period Ended period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
EXPENDITURE
EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSES 13
Salaries, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 253.01 134.04
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 56.48 18.54
Welfare 6.92 10.87
Amortisation Expenses of Deferred Employee Cost -| 316.40| - 163.45
OTHER EXPEMNSES 14
Rent = o
Rent for office 9.60 -
Rent for Employee Residence - 960 -] -
Rate and taxes 0.11/ -
Water Usage Charges - -
Power & Fuel 0.49 -
Insurance - -
Communication 2.78 117
Repair & Maintenance
Plant & Machinery - -
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts - -
Buildings 0.45 0.33
Others 0.91 1.36] 0.74 1.08
Travelling & Conveyance 3.82| 4.21
Vehicle Hire & Running 7.42] -
Publicity & Public relation - 0.48
Other General Expenses 143.17 9.56
Interest others - -
DEPRECIATION 2 4.58 0.07
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (A) 489.72 180.03
79

_ gk |
% S g ey AT



"ANSUAL REPORT P (é))

2024-25

: % in Lakh
Particulars Note | Fortheyear Fortheyear
No. | period Ended period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
RECEIPTS
OTHER INCOME 12
Interest
Rent Receipts 0.03 -
Sundry Receipts (0.00) -
Excess Provision Written Back ! 0.63 -
TOTAL RECEIPTS (B) 0.66 -
MET EXPENDITURE BEFORE TAXATION , 489.06 180.03
PROVISION FOR TAXATION
MET EXPENDITURE INCLUDING TAXATION 489.06 180.03
Acturial Gain/ (Loss) through OCI - -
Balance Brought Forward From Last Year : 180.03 _ -
TOTAL EDC _ 669.09 180.03
Less:- |
EDC Allocated To CWIP / Asset - -
EDC Of Projects Under Approval Charged
To Profit & Loss Account - - - -
Balance Carried Forward To CWIP | 669.09 | 180.03

oy
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Note :-4
DEFERRED TAX ASSET T in Lakh
Particulars NoteMo. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Deferred Tax Asset 24.29 14.59
Total 24,29 14,59
Mote :-5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS T in Lakh
Particulars MNote No. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances With Banks (Including Auto sweep, 518.78 1,000.25
Deposit with Banks)
Cheques, Drafts on hand - -
TOTAL 518.78 1,000.25
Note :-6
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) F in Lakh
Particulars Mote No. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Tax Deposited 5.49 -
TOTAL 5.49 -
MNote:-7
SHARE CAPITAL F in Lakh
Particulars Mote No. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Mumber of| Amount| Number of| Amount
Shares Shares
Authorised
Equity Shares of £10/-each 50000000 | 5,000.00| 50000000|5,000.00
Issued Subscribed & Paid-up 10000000 | 1,000.00| 10000000 1,000.00
Equity Shares of £10/-each fully paid up
TOTAL 10000000 | 1,000.00| 10000000 1,000.00
Note:-7.1
DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES IN THE COMPANY % in Lakh
Particulars Mote No. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Mumber of] Amount| Number of| Amount
Shares Shares
Share holding more than5 %
THDC India Limited F400000 74.00%| 7400000 74.00%
UJWNL Limited 2600000 26.00%| 2600000| 26.00%
TOTAL 10000000 | 100.00%| 10000000| 100.00%
‘o
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MNote:-7.2
RECONCILIATION OF NO. OF SHARES & SHARE CAPITALOUTSTANDING T in Lakh
Particulars NoteNo. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Number of|] Amount| Number of| Amount
Shares Shares
Opening 10000000 | 1,000.00 - -
Issued - - 10000000| 1,000.00
Closing 10000000 | 1,000.00/10,000,000| 1,000.00
MNote:-7.3
Shareholding of Promoters Fin Lokh
Particulars Mote No.| As at 31-Mar-2024 As at 31-Mar-2025
Number % Mumber % [% Change
of Shares of Shares during
(Opening) (Closing) the year
THDC India Limited 7400000 | 74.00% | 7400000 | 74.00%( 0.00%
UIVNL Limited 2600000 | 26.00% | 2600000 | 26.00%( 0.00%
TOTAL 10000000 |100.00%| 10000000 | 100.00%
Note:-8
OTHER EQUITY 2 in Lakh
Particulars NoteNo, Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Share Application Money Pending Allottment - -
Retained Earnings (69.12) (49.55)
Debenture Redemption Reserve - ;
Fly ash utilization reserve fund - -
TOTAL (69.12) (49.55)
Note:-9
CURRENT- FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- OTHERS 2 in Lakh
Particulars NoteNo, Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Liabilities
For Expenditure
For Others 307.26 307.26 248.61| 248.61
Deposits, Retention Money From
Contractors etc. 1.32 0.25
Less: Fair Value Adjustment-
Security Deposit/ Retention Money - 1.32 - 0.25
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain- Security
Deposit/ Retention Money - -
Other Liabilities 0.01 162
Interest Accrued But Not Due
TOTAL 308.59 250.47
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Note:- 10
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 2 in Lakh
Particulars NoteNo. | Asat31-Mar-2025 | Asat31-Mar-2024
Liahilities
Deferred revenue on Account of
Advance Against Depreciation - -
Other Liabilities 5.48 0.15
Contribution Towards Irrigation Component
Contribution Received From Government of
Uttar Pradesh Towards Irrigation Sector - -
LESS:- - -
Adjustment Towards Depreciation - - - -
TOTAL 5.48 0.15
THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
CIN :U35101UT2023G0I016550
MNote :-11
CURRENT PROVISIONS F in Lakh
Particulars Note For the Period Ended 31 March, 2025 For the Period Ended 31 March, 2024
No. | asat | addi- | Adjust- | Utitali-]  Asat Asat | Addi- | Adjust- | Utitali-| Asat
01-Apr- | tion | ment | sation | 31 March, | 31 March, | tion | ment | sation | 31 March,
2024 2025 2023 2024
Works - - - -
Employes Related - - - -
Arbitration Awards - - - -
Others 1.28 - 1.28 = 1.28 - 1.28
TOTAL 1.28 - | 128 - 1.28 - 1.28
Figure for Previous Period - | 1.28 = 1.28 -

>,
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Mote:-12
OTHER INCOME % in Lakh
Particulars 'Note No.| For the period Ended For the period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Interest
On Bank Deposits (Includes TDS $549048.00
Previous period %0.00) 54.91 -
Employee Loans & Advances- Adjustment on
Account of Effective Interest - -
Others - 54.91 - -
Rent Receipts 0.03 -
Sundry Receipts (0.00) -
Excess Provision Written Back 0.63 -
Fair Value Gain- Security Deposit/
Retention Money , - -
TOTAL . 55.57 -
Less: 1
Transferred ToEDC 3.1 0.66 -
TOTAL ' 54.91 -
Note :-13
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES % in Lakh
Particulars Note No. | For the period Ended |For the period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Salaries, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 335.42 156.30
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 56.48 18.54
Welfare Expense 6.92 10.87
Amortisation Expenses of Deferred
Employee Cost - -
TOTAL 398.81 185.71
Less:
Transferred To EDC 3.1 316.40 163.45
TOTAL 82.41 22.26
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W\"“\e" . ‘;5\3



%]

/((;)) - "ANNUAL REPORT

2024-25

Note:-14
GEMERATION ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES % in Lakh
Particulars Note No. | For the period Ended For the period Ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Rent
Rent far office 9.60 -
Rent for Employees Residence - 9.60 - -
Rate and taxes 0.11 -
Water Usage Charges - -
Power & Fuel 0.49 -
Insurance - -
Communication 2.78 1.17
Repair & Maintenance
Plant & Machinery - -
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts - -
Buildings 0.45 0.33
Others 0.91 1.36 0.74 1.08
Travelling & Conveyance 3.82 421
Vehicle Hire & Running 7.42 -
Publicity & Public relation - 0.48
Other General Expenses 143.17 9.56
Payment to Auditors 1.77 137
Preliminary Expenses Written Off - 40.11
TOTAL 170.51 58.38
LESS:-
Allocated to Coal Inventary - -
Transferred To EDC 31 168.74 16.50
TOTAL 1.77 41.88
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15. Disclosures on financial instruments and
risk management.

IND AS 107 is applicable on financial
instruments. The definition of financial
instrument is inclusive and cater finan-
cial assets and financial liabilities.
Explained below are then a true and
extent of Risks a rising from financial
instruments to which Company is
exposed during the period, and also how

Company is managing these risks.

(i) CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party  16.

will not meet its obligations under a |
financial instrument or customer con-
tract, leading to a financial loss. The
company is exposed to credit risks from
deposits with bank.

(ii) Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company

may not be able to meet its present and
future cash and collateral obligations 3.

withoutincurring unacceptable Losses.

©

The Company considers factors such as
track record, size of the market reputa-
tion and service standards and approved
by Chairman to select the Bank with
which, balance and deposits are main-
tained.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash
availability to meet obligations when
due.

Other explanatory notes on accounts:
Estimated amount of contracts remain-
ing to be executed on capital account
including R&R and environment
demands, if any not provided for (net of
advances) is C.Y. ¥212.76 Lakhs (PY.
#360.77 Lakhs).

Contingent Liabilities— Nil

Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related

Party Disclosures”:-

Management of those Risks (mitigate) (A) ListofRelated Parties:
Credit Risk (I} Parent:
Name of Company / entity Principal place of operation
THDC India Limited India
UIVN Limited India
NTPCLtd. (Parent Company Of THDC INDIA LIMITED) India

" \-f\m
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(ii) Functional Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Sl. | Name Position held Period

1. | Mr.R.K.Vishnoi Chairman w.e.f.01.12.2023
2. | Mr.Bhupender Gupta Nominee Director w.e.f.01.12.2023
3. | Mr.SipanKumarGarg Nominee Director w.e.f.06.09.2024
4. | Mr.LaxmiPrasad Joshi Nominee Director W.e.f.01.12.2023
5. | Mr.Sandeep Singhal MNominee Director W.ef 01.12.2023
6. | Mr.Suresh ChandraBaluni | Nominee Director W.e.f.01.12,2023
7. | ShriSandeep Kumar CEO W.ef 14.12.2023
8. | ShriA.P.Bajpai CFO W.e.f. 14.12.2023t006.08.2024
9. | ShriS.K.Mohanty CFO W.e.f.07.08.2024
10. | Ms. Shakshi Negi Company Secretary W.e.f.14.12.2023

(iii) Other entities with joint control or government has control or joint control

significantinfluence over the Company.

The Company is a subsidiary of Central
Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) THDC
INDIA LIMITED by holding majority of
shares. Pursuant to Paragraph 25 & 26 of

of, or significant influence, then the
reporting entity and other entities shall
be regarded as related parties. The
Company has applied the exemption
available for government related entities
and have made limited disclosures in the

Ind AS24, entities over which the same ; :
financial statements.

MName and nature of relationship with Government

sl. Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship
1. THDC India Limited Holding Company (74.00%)
2. UJVN Limited Share holder (26.00%)
3 NTPC Parent Company Of THDCINDIA LIMITED
(i) Transactionswith related parties are as follows: (¥ InLakh)
Name of the Nature of Transactions For the period For the period
Company/Party By the Company ended 31.03.2025 | ended 31.03.2024
THDC India Limited | Initial equity contribution - 740.00
UIVN Ltd Initial equity contribution - 260.00
THDC India Ltd. Amount payable on account of acg. Of PPE - 7.56
THDC India Ltd. Reimbursement of Employee benefits i.e. - 185.71
Basic, DA, Allowances and Statutory Dues
like CPF, GSLI, Pension etc.
THDC India Ltd. Recovery of CPF, G5LI, Loan, Statutory 74.16 -
dues etc. from salary and other
Employee related matter
THDC India Ltd. Others incl. preliminary exp., security, - 55.33
consultancy, R & M etc.
THDC India Ltd. Printing & Stationery 0.22 -

7 g
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(ii) Transactions with Key Managerial Persons:

Sl. No. | Description Year ended 31.3.2025, Year ended 31.3.2024
1 | Short Term Employee Benefits 82.41 22.22
2 Post Retirement & other Lnng
Term Employee Benefits - -
3 Termination benefits --
4 Share-based payment - -
TOTAL 82.41 22.22
(iii) Outstanding Balances with related parties are as follows: (Tin Lakh)
Particulars Forthe Yearended 31.3.2025 | For the Yearended 31.3.2024
Amount payable:
To THDC India Limited 273.77 248.60
To UJVN Limited 30.20 -

4. Earnings pershare (EPS)-Basic & Diluted
The elements considered for calculation of earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) are as

under: (Tin Lakh)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Net Profit after Tax (YLakh) (19.57) (49.55)
Weighted average no. of equity shares used as
denominator for Basic EPS 10000000 3333333
Weighted average no. of equity shares used as
denominator for Diluted EPS 10000000 3333333
Earnings per Share.
-Basic (0.20) (1.49)
-Diluted (0.20) (1.49)
Face \falue pershare¥ 10.00

5. Incompliance to the Ind AS 12“Income Taxes” issued by the Ministry of Company Affairs,
the net deferred tax assets of ¥9.70 (P.Y. ¥ 14.59) Lakh has been booked to Statement of

Profit & Loss. (T In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 2025 (¥ In Lakh) As at March 2024 (< In Lakh)
Deferred Tax Asset _ 24.29 | 14.59
Total 24.29 14.59

(¥ In Lakh)
Calculation of Deferred tax 31.03.2025
a) Asseton Account of Depreciation - -
WDV of fixed asset as per IT Act - -
WDV of fixed asset as per Books - -

TS | o
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(T In Lakh)
Difference -
b} Asset on Accountof Preliminary expenses
| Preliminary Expenses allowable as deductible in future -
C) Unabsorbed losses allowable in Future 93.41
Temporary Differences 93.41
Net amount of Temporary Differences 93.41
Tax rate 26.00%
Deferred Tax Asset 24.29

6. Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31st March 2023 as required by

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and the said

outstanding is less than 45 days.
Nil
7. ImpactofchangesinSignificant Accounting Po

licy

Sl.No. Policy Modifications

Impact / Remark

1. | Policy No 18.6 has beeninserted.

Furniture, Fixture, Office equipment, IT
and other Communication equipment

Policy has been inserted for improved
disclosure. Due to this insertion,
there is no impact on the financial

where the life is separately defined for | Statements.
any specific purpose, depreciation
charged over life of the asset.
8. Payment to Auditors (including GST) (T in Lakh)
2024-25 2023-24
l. Statutory Audit Fees (i/c GST) 1.77 177

Il. | ForTaxation matter (Tax Audit)

ll. | ForCompanyLaw matter

IV. | For Managementservices

V. | ForotherServices (Certification)

VI. | ForReimbursement of expenditure

9. a) Reconciliation of Cash& Cash Equivalents between Cash Flow Statement and Balance
Sheet isasunder: (Tin Lakh)
Particulars NoteNo | 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Cash And Cash Equivalents 5 518.78 1000.25
Add: Bank Balances under Lien - -
Less: Over Draft Balance - -
Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Cash Flow Statement 518.78 1000.25
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b) In March 2017 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules 2017 notifying amendments to Ind AS 7
‘Statement of cash flows’. These amendments are in accordance with the recent
amendments made by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to IAS7
‘Statement of cash flows.

The amendments are applicable from 01 April 2017 and they introduce additional
disclosures that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabili-
ties arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities to
meet the disclosure requirement.

(X in Lakh)

Cash flow from Financing Opening | Current  Closing | Change Remarks

Activities (2023-24) Year

Share Capital Issued 2023 | 0.00 (1000.00/1000.00|1000.00| ¥ 740.00 lakhs from

(Including pending -24 THDCIL & T 260.00
allotment) lakhs from UJVNL

Share Capital Issued 2024 | 1000.00 - 1000.00 - T 740.00 lakhs from

(Including pending -25 THDCIL & T 260.00
allotment) lakhs from UJVNL

10. Disclosures underthe provision of IND AS 19

Since all the employees are on secondment basis from its parent company — THDCIL, the
employee benefit includes provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical
facilities, compensated absence and other terminal benefits are in terms of the arrange-
ment with the parent company. The company is to make a fixed contribution to the above
schemes through its parent company which maintain these funds through respective
trusts. Accordingly, these employee benefits are treated as defined contribution scheme.

11. Ratio Analysis:

(¥ in Lakh)
Sl.| Particulars Numerator Denominator |Year ended |Yearended % Reason
Nao. 30.03.2025 (30.03.2024| Vari- for
(Audited) | (Audited) | ance | Variance
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
a | Current Ratio | Current Assets Current 1.67 3.97 |-57.93% Dueto
Liabilities Detrease
in Current
Bszet and
increase
in current
Liability.
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(Rs. in Lakh
b |Debt Equity Ratio Total debt Net worth N.A., N.A,
C | Debt Service | (Net Profit After (Interest on
‘Coverage Ratio | Taxes + Interest on| debt + Principal
debt + Depre- | repayments of | N-A. N.A.
ciation & Amor- long terms
tisation Exp + Loss debt)
on sale of Fixed
. Assets)
d | Returnon Net Losses after | Average Stake | -2.08% | -5.08% |-59.04% DDuE to
Equity Rati . : ecrease
quity Ratio taxes holder’s Equity i lags
e Inventory Revenue from Average N.A. N.A.
| turnover ratio Operations Inventory
¢ | Debtors Revenue from Average NA N.A.
turnover Operations (Net trade
ratio Credit Sales) receivables
€ Trade Payables Net Credit Average Trade N.A. N.A.
| Turnover Ratio Purchases Payables
h Net Capital Revenue from Working N.A. N.A.
' Turnover Ratio Operations Capital
i Net profit Net profit after Net Sales N.A. N.A.
margin taxes
j Return on Earning Capital '3+23% '5435% '52.39% Due to
Capital before Interest Employed Dﬁf[gi:e
Employed & Taxes
k Return on Income from Investment N.A. N.A.
Investment Investment

12. Previous Year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified whenever necessary to make the
figures comparable with the figures of the current year.

13. Thesefinancial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Shakshi Negi) {5.K. Mohanty) (Sandeep Kumar) (R.K. Vishnoi)
Company Secratary C.F.O. C.E.C. Chairman

Membership No. 62823 DIM:08534217

Date :16.05.2025

As per our Report of even date attached
Place : Rishikesh : 2

For Ansul Aggarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 500112M of ICAI

Sd/-
{CA. Ansul Aggarwal)
Partner

Date :17.05.2025
Place : Dehradun
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To, sive income, changes in equity and its cash
The Mambars of flows of the Company for the year ended on

THDCIL-UWWVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying
standalone financial statements of M/s
THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 315t March 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other Comprehen-
sive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow
Statement for the period then ended, and a
notes to the financial statements, including
summery of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.(hereinafter
referred to as “standalone financial state-
ments”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa-
tion and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial state-
ments give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the man-
ner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian
accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015 , as
amended (Ind AS) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2025, and its Loss , total comprehen-

that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most signifi-
cance in our audit of the Financial Statements of
the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion onthose matters.
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Information Other than the Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board Report,
but does not include the Financial Statements
and our Auditors Report thereon. The Board
Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this Auditors’ report. Our
opinion on the Financial Statements does not
cover the otherinformation and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read above Board Report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance and
describe necessary actions required as per
applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act, with respect to the
preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles
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generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with relevantrules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
control, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether
duetofraudorerror

In preparing the Financial Statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company'sfinancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
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or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahighlevel of assurance, butis not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, orthe override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order to
desighauditprocedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate
Internal Financial Controls with
reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the

©

reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basisof accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertaintyexistsrelated to
events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a materialuncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, futureeventsorconditions
may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements
in the Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with
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governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order,2020 (“the Order”}, issued
by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure ‘A’ statement on the
matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and
4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by the Directions/Sub
directions under Section 143 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure ‘B’, a report on the directions/
sub-directions issued by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India.

3.  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act,
we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of
those books.

c)

d)

f)

g)
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement
of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the
boolks of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid
Financial Statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended.

In terms of Notification No. G.S.R.
463(E) dated 05th June, 2015 issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the provisions of Section 164 (2) of
the Act regarding disqualification of
directors, are not applicable to the
Government Company.

Based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company
has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for
the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated
throughout the period for all
relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the
course of our audit, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate
reportin “Annexure C”; and
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h) In terms of Notification No. G.5.R.

463(E) dated 05th June, 2015 issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, Section 197 of
the Act as regards the managerial
remuneration is not applicable to
the Company; and

With respect to the other matters
included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and
according to the explanations given
tous:-

i) The Company does not have
any pending litigations which
would impact its financial
position.

iij The Company did not have any
long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which
there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which
were required to be transferred

iv)

©

to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the
Company.

The Company has not paid/
declared any dividend during
the year.

FOR ANSUL AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.
500112N

(ANSUL AGRAWAL)
PARTRER
Membership No. : 092048

Place of Signature: Dehradun
Date: 17.05.2025
UDIN: 25092048BMJITA7939
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of
even date to the members of THDCIL-UJVNL
Energy Company Limited on the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st
March,2025.

1. (a) The Company has maintained
proper records showing full particu-
lars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment . No intangible assets
were held by the company during
the period.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment
have been physically verified by the
management at proper intervals
which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its business.
No material discrepancies between
the books records and the physical
have been noticed.

(c) Noimmovable propertyis held inthe
name of the company during the
period.

(d) The Company has not revalued any
of its Property, Plant and Equipment
duringthe period.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated
during the period or are pending
against the Company as at March 31,
2025 for holding any benami prop-
erty under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
in2016) and rules made thereunder.

2 The Company has no inventory
during the year. Therefore, reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

3. The Company has not made invest-

6

(a)

ments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to compa-
nies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or any other parties.
Therefore, reporting under this
clauseis not applicable.

The company has not made / given
any loans, investments, guarantees
and security. Therefore, provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applica-
ble.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits and hence,
the question of complying with the
directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the
Companies  Act and the rules
framed there under, does not arise.
Also, there has not been any order
passed by Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court of
any other tribunal.

According to the explanations given
to us, the clause relating to main-
taining cost records are not applica-
ble, hence not commented upaon.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the
books of account and records, the
Company has been generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory

L = gy —~d “"Yltfi?f‘ﬂ
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dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and
any other material statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and
explanation given to us, no undis-
puted amounts payable in respect of
the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more
than six months from the date on
which they become payable.

(b) According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are
no dues of income tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise and any other statutory dues
that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There was no transaction relating to
previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the period in tax assess-
ments under the Income Tax Act,1961.

The Company has not taken any loans or
other borrowings from any bank,financial
institutions or from the government and
has not issued any debentures.
Therefore, reporting under this clause is
notapplicable

(a) The company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including
debts instruments) .Therefore, the
provisions of this clause are not
applicable tothe company.

(b) The company has not made any
preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible

1l.

12.

13.

14.

15.

©

debentures (fully, partly or option-
ally convertible) during the year
under review. Therefore, provisions
of this clause is not applicable to the
company.

(a) According to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud on
or by the company by the officers or
employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) Any report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act
has not been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) The auditor has not received any
whistle- blower complaints.
Therefore, there is no consideration
ofthe same.

The company is not a Nidhi company.
Therefore, provisions of this clause is not
applicable to the company.

All the transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the details have beendisclosed in the
Financial Statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

The Company is under no statutory
obligation to have any internal audit
system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business. However, the
company has opted for Internal audit
voluntary by the Chartered Accountants
Firm.

The company has not entered into any
non cash transactions with the directors
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16.

17,

18.

19.

or persons connected with him.
Therefore, provisions of this clause is not
applicable to the company.

The company is not a non banking finan-
cial company. Therefore, the company is
not required to be Registered under
section 45- |A of Reserve Bank of India
Act,1934.

The Company has incurred cash losses of
Rs. 19.57 Lakhs in the financial year and
Rs. 49,55 lakhs in the immediately pre-
ceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the
statutory auditors during the year.
Therefore, reporting under this clause is
notapplicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompany-
ing the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report indicating
that company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT
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20. The provisions of Section 135 of the Act
related to Corporate Social Responsibility
is not applicable to the company.
Therefore, reporting under this clause is
notapplicable.

21. The Company is not required to furnish
consolidated financial statements.
Therefore, reporting under this clause is
not applicable

For Ansul Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration no. 500112 N)

Sd/-

(Ansul Agrawal)

Partner

Membership No. 092048

Place: Dehradun
Date: 17.05,2025
LUDIN: 25092048BMIITATS39
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ANNEXURE “B”

’
" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT _ —

Annexure B to : The Auditors Report of M/s THDCIL- UJIVNL Energy Company Limited For the
Financial Year 2024-2025

Reply to Directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 to be issued to the Statutory

Auditors of the Government Companies applicable for the financial year 2024-25

Sl. Directions Reply

1. | Whether the Company has system in place | According to the information and
to process all the accounting transactions | explanationgivento usand based onour
through IT System?, If yes, the implication of | audit, all accounting transactions are
processing of accounting transactions | routed through FMS System imple-
outside IT System on the integrity of the | mented bythe Company.
accounts along with the financial implica-
tion, ifany, may be stated.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an | According to the information and
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off of | explanation given to us and based on our
debts /loans /interest etc. made by alender | audit, there is no case of any restructur-
of the company due to the Company's | ingofan existing loan or cases of waiver /
inability to repay the loan?. If yes, the | yyrite off of debts / loans / interest etc.
financialimpact may be stated. made by a lender of the company due to
Whether such cases are properly accounted | the Company 's inability to repay the
for? loan
(in case the lender is a government company,
then this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lending company)

3. | Whether fund (grants / subsidy etc.) | Based on the audit procedures carried
received / receivable for specific schemes | out and as per the information and
from Central / State Government or its | explanation given to us, the funds (grants
agencies were properly accounted for / | /subsidyetc.)received /receivable, ifany
utilized as per its term and conditions ?. for specific schemes from Central / State
] .. Government or its agencies were prop-

erly accounted for / utilized as per the
respective term and conditions

For Ansul Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 500112N

Sd/-

(Ansul Agrawal )
Partner

M.No. 092048

Place: Dehradun
Date: 17.05.2025
< UDIN: 25092048BMJITA7939
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Annexure - Cto the Auditors' Report )

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of M/s THDCIL- UJIVNL
Energy Company Limited (“the Company”) as
of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for
the yearended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s managementis responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compo-
nents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safe-
guarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note"”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such con-
trols operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal finan-
cial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of mate-
rial misstatement of the financial statements,
whether duetofraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

v 7 = g oy
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provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A com-
pany's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deterio-
rate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all mate-
rial respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Ansul Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 500112N
Sd/-

(Ansul Agrawal)

Partner

M. No: 092048

Place : Dehradun

Date: 17.05.2025
UDIN: 25092048BMIJITA7933
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INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT 1
Office of the Director General of Audit (Energy)
MNew Delhi

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THDCIL-UJVNL
ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025.

The preparation of financial statements of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 17 May 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the
supplementary audit of the financial statements of THDCIL-UJVNL Energy Company Limited
forthe yearended 31 March 2025 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

sd/-
(Guljari Lal)
Addl. Dy. Comptroller & Auditor General (Energy)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2025
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/(”)3 THDCIL-UJVNL ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Welcome To The Shareholders, Board Of Directors, And Auditors Of Qur Company,

Key Highlights for 2024.25
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